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Financial highlights

In thousands of naira

Revenue

Operating Profit

(Loss)/Profit before taxation

Taxation

(Loss)/Profit after tax

Non-controlling interest

Loss attributable to equity holders of parent company

At year end:
Share capital
Total equity

Data per 50k share
Based on 3,970,477,045 ordinary shares of 50k each:

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Naira)
Number of employees

Stock exchange guotations in Naira (Company):
As at 31 May
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The Group
%
2020 2018 Change
66,992,561 74,336,468 (10)
(7,068,747) 2,273,012 (411)
(7,984,735) 1,942,447 (511)
745,176 (786,596) (195)
(7,239,559) 1,155,851 (726)
(318,268) 144,431 (320)
(6,921,291) 1,011,420 (784)
1,985,238 1,985,238 (0)
34,559,953 45,752,288 (24)
(1.74) 0.25 (797)
1,302 1,392 (6)
5.50 8.10 (32)
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Report of the Directors

Accounts and Results

The Board of Directors of PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc is pleased to present to members the consolidated and separate statements
of financial Position as at 31 May 2020 together with the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity, cashflows for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Operating Result
The following is the summary of the group's operating result as at 31 May 2020
2020 2019 Change %
N'000 N'000

Revenue 66,992,561 74,336,468 (10)
Operating (loss)/profit (7,068,747) 2,273,012 (411)
(Loss)/profit before taxation (7,984,735) 1,942,447 (511)
Taxation 745,176 (786,596) (195)
(Loss)/profit for the year (7,239,559) 1,155,851 (726)
Non-controlling interest (318,268) 144,431 (320)
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of parent company (6,921,291) 1,011,420 (784}

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group continued to be the manufacturing, marketing, sale and distribution of a wide range of
consumer products and home appliances which are leading brand names throughout the country in detergent, soap,
cosmetics, refrigerators and air-conditioners. The Group also distributes the products of Nutricima Limited, Harefield
Industrial Nigeria Limited and PZ Wilmar Food Limited.

Directors and their interest

The directors who served during the year and their interest in the shares of the Group as recorded in the register of
members for the purpose of Section 275 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act and in compliance with the Listing
Requirements of the Nigerian Stock Exchange are as follows:

Directors 2020 2019
Chief Kolawole Jamodu, CFR 3,566,880 3,566,880
Mr. L. Batagarawa 20,706 20,706
Mrs. E. Ebi Nil Nil
Ms. J.F Coker 3,889 3,889
Mr. D. Muhammad Nil Nil
Mr. P. Usoro 1,000,000 1,000,000
Mr. George Sotiropoulos Nil Nil
Mr. Panagiotis Katsis Nil Nil
Mr. Zuber Momoniat Nil Nil

There were no changes to the above holdings as at 27th August 2020.

Interest in contracts

In accordance with Section 277 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Mr Paul Usoro, SAN hereby notifies the Group
that he is a Partner in the law firm of Paul Usoro & Co which renders legal advisory services to the Group. No other Director
has notified the Group of any declarable interest in any contract in which he/she was involved with the Group during the
year.

Directors for re-election

In accordance with Article 90 of the Group's Articles of Association and Section 259 (1) of the companies and Allied matters
Act, one third of the number of Directors, based on the length of stay in the office must retire at the Annual General
Meeting. They may offer themselves for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Paul Usoro, Mallam Dahiru Muhammad and Ms. Joyce
F. Coker will be retiring at the meeting, and, being eligible, they have offered themselves for re-election.
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Report of the Directors (cont’d)

Records of Directors Attendance

In compliance with Section 258 (2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act the Record of Directors' Attendance at Board
Meetings in 2019/2020 financial year will be made available at the Annual General Meeting for inspection by members.

Meetings of the Board of Directors

Asarule, the Board of Directors meets at least quarterly and additional meetings are convened as required. Also, as allowed
by the Group's Articles of Association, material decisions are sometimes taken between meetings by way of written
resolutions.

At every quarterly meeting, the directors are provided with comprehensive reports of the activities of the various business
units as well as important corporate events. They are also briefed on all business developments between meetings. The
Board met four times during the 2020 financial year.

The meetings were presided over by the Chairman. In all cases, written notices of meetings, the meeting agenda as well as
the reports for consideration were circulated well ahead of the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately
recorded and circulated.

Attendance at Meetings
The Board has a formal schedule of meetings each year and met Seven (7) times in the course of the year under review. The
record of attendance of the Directors at the meetings is set below:

bf27f2019 9/26/2019 10/29/2019 10/29/2019 1/23/2020 | 6/4/2020 | 4/24/2020
Chief Kolawole Jamodu i ] U i it ii ii
Mr. C. Giannopoulos ii il 1] i ii i ]
Mrs. E. Ebi i il 0 il il i ii
Mallam D. Muhammad ii il 0 i il i AP
Mallam L. Batagarawa i il U i il ii i
Mr. P. Usoro AB AB 1] ii il ii ii
Ms. J. Coker i ii 1] i ii ii i
Mr. A. Goma i R R R R R
* Mr. P. Barreto ii il U il il R R
Mr. G. Sotiropoulos i i U il il AP i
* Mr. Z. Momoniat MNA NA NA NA NA i i
* Mr. Panagiotis Katsis NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
u Present
AB Absent
R Resigned
NA Not Appointed

*Mr. P. Barreto resigned on 31 March 2020.
*Mr. Z. Momoniat became a member on 01 April 2020.
*Mr. Panagiotis Katsis became a member on 01 July 2020.

Major Shareholdings
According to the Register of members as at 31 May 2020, PZ Cussons (Holdings) Limited UK held 2,909,349,788 shares. This
represents 73.27% of the paid-up capital of the Group.
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Analysis of Shareholdings
Range No. of
Shareholders | Holders % Units | % Units
1-1000 24,871 32.86 10,611,662 0.27
1001 - 5000 23,231 30.70 57,606,131 1.45
5001 - 10000 11,461 15.14 87,774,113 2.21
10001 - 50000 13,947 18.43 285,654,447 7.19
50001 - 100000 1,165 1.54 81,466,628 2.05
100001 - 500000 833 1.10 161,402,114 4.07
500001 - 1000000 83 0.11 57,265,060 1.44
1000001 - 5000000 74 0.10 149,810,831 3.77
5000001 - 10000000 9 0.01 60,181,538 1.52
10000001- 500000000 5 0.01 109,354,733 2.75
500000001- 100000000 1 0.00 82,442,840 2.08
100000001- 3970477045 1 0.00 | 2,826,906,948 71.20
75,681 100.00 3,970,477,045 100.00

Apart from PZ Cussons (Holdings) Limited, UK, no other shareholder held more than 5% of the paid up capital of the Group
as at 31 May 2020,

Board Committees
The Board has established Standing Committees whose terms of reference clearly spelt out roles, responsibilities and scope

of authorities. To ensure compliance with the Best Practice in Corporate Governance each Committee is chaired by a Non-
Executive Director.

Board Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Committee is to assist the Board in its oversight of the risk profile, risk management framework and risk review strategy.
The Committee is to carry out periodic review of changes in the economic and business environment, including emerging
trends and other factors relevant to the Group's risk profile

The Committee is made up of seven members namely:

Mr. L. Batagarawa - Chairman
Mr. C Giannopoulos

Mrs. E. Ebi

Mr. G. Sotiropoulos

Mr. A Goma - Resigned

Mr. P. Barreto
Mr. Z. Momoniat
Mr. P. Katsis

The Committee met three times during the financial year. The table below summarises members' attendance at the
meetings

Name No. of meetings held No. of meetings attended
Mr. L. Batagarawa 3 3
Mr. C Giannopoulos 3 3
Mrs. E. Ebi 3 3
Mr. G. Sotiropoulos 3 2
Mr. A Goma 3 1
Mr. P. Barreto 3 3
Mr. Z. Momoniat 3 il
Mr. P. Katsis 3 Nil
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Board Audit and Risk Management Committee (cont’d)
The meetings were held on 25 September 2019, 22 January 2020 and 19 March 2020.

* Mr. A. Goma resigned 30 September 2020

* Mr. G. Sotiropoulos joined the Committee on 22 January 2020
* Mr. Z Momoniat became a member on 01 April 2020

* Mr. P. Katsis became a member on 01 July 2020

Governance / People Committee
The committee advises the Board on appointment of directors, corporate governance matters, staff welfare and
remuneration, talent management and other strategic employees' relations matters.

The Committee members are:

Mr. P. Usoro, SAN Chairman
Mr. C. Giannopoulos

Ms. J.F. Coker

Mr D. Muhammad

Mr. G. Sotiropoulos

Mr. P. Katsis

The Committee met three times during the financial year and the table below shows the attendance at the meetings:

Name No. of meetings held MNo. of meetings attended
Mr. P. Usoro 3 3
Mr. C. Giannopoulos 3 3
Ms. ).F. Coker 3 3
Mallam D. Muhammad 3 3
Mr. G. Sotiropoulos 3 1
Mr. P. Katsis 3 Nil

The meetings were held on 24 September 2020, 22 January 2020 and 24 March 2020.

* Mr. G. Sotiropoulos left the Committee on 22 January 2020
* Mr. P. Katsis became a member on 01 July 2020

Statutory Audit Committee

The Committee is established to perform the functions listed in Section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act.
The Committee consists of six members made of three representatives of the shareholders elected at the previous Annual
General Meeting for the tenure of one year and three representatives of the Board of Directors. The meetings of the

Committee were attended by the Head of Internal Control and representatives of Deloitte & Touche, the Group's external
auditors.

The following directors served on the Committee during the year:
Mr. L. Batagarawa

Mrs. E. Ebi
Mr. A Goma

Vi
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Statutory Audit Committee (cont’d)
The table below summarises the attendance at the Committee meetings during the year: "

Name No. of meetings held Mo. of meetings attended
Mrs. E. Ebi 4 3

Mr. O.1. Obarinde
Mr. E.A. Akinduro
Hon. B. Nwabughogu
Mr. L. Batagarawa
Mr. P. Barreto

Mr. A. Goma

Mr G. Sotiropoulos
Mr. Z. Momoniat

B b bh LR L LD
MR BSE LD

Nil
The meetings were held on 26 August 2018, 25 September 2019, 22 January 2020 and 25 March 2020.

* Mr. A. Goma resigned 30 September 2020
* Mr. G. Satiropoulos joined the Committee on 22 January 2020
* Mr. Z Momoniat became a member on 01 April 2020

Board Composition

The Group's Articles of Association provides for a maximum of fifteen directors. At the date of this report, the Board consists
of ten Directors: five Non-Executive Directors and five Executive Directors. There is an ongoing board recruitment process
for the appointment of a non-executive director as at the time of this Report.

The profile of the Board comprises distinguished individuals with diverse skills and competences in different areas of the
Group's business. This continually ensures the realisation of the set corporate objectives.

In line with best practices, the position of the Chairman is distinct from that of the Group Chief Executive Officer.

The Chairman is Chief Kolawole Jamodu, CFR, a Non-Executive Chairman while the Chief Executive Officer during the period
was Mr. Christos Giannopoulos (retired). Furthermore, while the Chairman is responsible for the running of the Board, the
Chief Executive Officer is responsible for coordinating the running of the business and implementing strategies.

Independent Directors
In compliance with the Code, Two (2) of the five (5) Non-Executive Directors are independent directors having no significant
shareholding interest or any special business relationship with the Group.

Board Operations
The Board is the ultimate governing body of the Group and it is responsible for its overall supervision and the protection of

the interest of shareholders and other stakeholders. It ensures that the Group is appropriately managed to achieve strategic
objectives.

The specific issues reserved for the Board include:
The ultimate direction of the Group particularly the conduct and supervision of the business.

Determination of the Group's organisation

Risk Management and internal control

Supervision with respect to compliance with the law
Corporate Governance matters

Communication with shareholders

Review of business performance

e & @ o @ @

vii
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Independent Directors (cont’d)

The Board has delegated to management the day-to-day running of the business and the Chief Executive Officer, who is the
head of the Management Team, is answerable to the Board.

Board Appointment and Induction

Directors are appointed to the Board following a declaration of vacancy at a Board meeting. New Directors are selected
through carefully articulated selection guideline that place emphasis on integrity, skills and competences relevant to the
Group's goals and aspirations. The Policy confers on the Governance and People Committee the responsibility of identifying
individuals with track record of outstanding achievements and potentials for value enhancement. The Committee's
recommendation is subjected to further scrutiny by the Board before a decision is taken. The Appointed director is made
to undergo an induction programme to equip and familiarize him/her with requisite knowledge and information about the
Group and its business. The appointed Director is presented at the next Annual general meeting for election.

Furthermore, a newly appointed director receives a letter of appointment spelling out in details the entitlements, terms of
reference of the Board and its Committees and the Key Performance Indicators.

Board Evaluation

The Board has established a system to undertake a formal annual evaluation of its performance, that of its Committees and
the individual directors. The Board designed questionnaire for evaluation on areas such as the ability of the Board to fulfil
its general supervisory roles, preparation of members for meetings, participation at meetings, quality of proposals made by
members at meetings etc. The questionnaire for evaluation for the year ended 31 May 2020 was completed by members
and the summary of the results compiled electronically.

Based on the results, the Board, its committees and each individual director recorded very good performance.

Internal Control

The Board maintained a sound system of internal control to safeguard shareholders investments and the Group's assets.
The system of internal control provides reasonable assurance against material loss. The responsibilities include oversight
functions of internal audit and control, risk assessment and compliance, conformity and contingency planning, and
formalisation and improvement of business process.

Communication with shareholders

The Board is committed to an open and consistent communication policy with shareholders and other stakeholders. The
guiding principle is that all shareholders should be given equal treatment in equal situations. Thus price sensitive
information is published timely in full, simple and transparent format to all shareholders at the same time.

Furthermore all shareholders have equal opportunity at the Annual General Meeting to present questions to the Board and
make comments on any aspect of the financial statements.

Insider Dealings

The Group has regulations guiding directors, members of the Audit Committee and other officers of the Group on periods
when they, or persons connected to them cannot lawfully effect transactions on the shares of the Group as well as the
disclosure requirements when effecting any transaction on the Group's shares.

E- Dividend

The Group consistently encourages its shareholders to embrace the e-dividend and e-bonus introduced in the capital
market. This is to enable prompt crediting of shareholders account with dividend and their CSCS account with bonus shares.
This will also eliminate the cost of posting dividend warrants and share certificate as well as the risk of being lost in the
post.

viii



PZ CUSSONS NIGERIA PLC
Annual report and consolidated financial statements

31 May 2020
Report of the Directors {cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment

Movement in property, plant and equipment during the year are shown in Note 4 of the financial statements. In the opinion
of the Directors, the market value of the Group's property, plant and equipment is not lower than the value shown in the
financial statements.

Distributors and Suppliers
The Group has 6 distribution depots across the country with over 1000 distributors.

The Group also obtains its requirements from both local and overseas suppliers. The principal overseas suppliers are
associated companies within the PZ Cussons Group. The transactions are carried out at arm's length.

Research and Development

The Group's Research and Development efforts, supported through licensing and technical services agreement with
overseas associated companies in the PZ Cussons Group are designed to ensure a constant programme of product
improvement and new product introduction.

Employment of disabled persons

The Group policy provides for due priority to be accorded to disabled persons in recruitment for any available position
where their incapacity will not expose them to danger or serious disadvantage. Employees who become disabled in the
course of their employment are retained and redeployed wherever possible within the context of the above policy.

Health Safety and welfare

The Group recognises the health and safety of its employees, customers, contractors and other stakeholders as a top priority
and form an integral part of its business activities. We are committed to maintaining a safe working place at all times and
in all sites, depots and business units across the country so as to avoid accidents and ill health due to work situation. We
recognise that health and safety is fundamental to good manufacturing practice. The roll out of our world class
manufacturing programme has ensured that our factories are pleasant work places.

Gifts and Donations
During 2020, the group contributed N50,000,000 (2019: N50,000,000) to PZ Foundation. The Foundation commissioned a
number of sustainable projects to the benefit of various communities around the country.

In accordance with Section 38(2) of CAMA, the group did not make any donation or gift to any political party, association
or for any political purposes in the course of the year.

Employee involvement and training

The Group is committed to keeping employees informed regarding the Group’s performance and progress through regular
briefings and meetings. Their views are sought wherever practicable on matters which affect them as employees. The Group
believes that professional and technical expertise of its managers constitutes a major asset, and investment in developing
such skills continues to receive attention.

The Group's skill base has been steadily expanding with the range of training provided for career development within the
Group.

Statement of Compliance
We hereby affirm that that the SEC Code of Corporate Governance governs the operations of the Group and confirm that
to the best of our knowledge we are in compliance with the Code.
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Complaint Management Policy
The Complaint Management Policy sets out the broad framework bend to issues which the Group and its Registrars attend

toissues and concerns raised by shareholders and provide the opportunity for shareholders to give feedback to the Group.
The Group is dedicated to ensuring great standard of services to its shareholders by:

® Creating an efficient process for the management of shareholders' complaints and enquiries
® Ensuring that all matters relating to shareholders are adequately addressed; and
® Making information readily available to shareholders.

Communication Policy

Qur Group has in place a Communication Policy in accordance with the requirements of the Securities & Exchange
Commission.

The Board recognises the need to communicate and disseminate information regarding the operations and management

of the Group to all relevant stakeholders (including Shareholders, regulatory authorities, media, analysts and the general
public).

Independent Auditors

The firm of Deloitte & Touche served as the Independent Auditor during the year under review. In accordance with Section

357(2) of CAMA, Deloitte & Touche have indicated their willingness to continue in office as Independent Auditor of the
Group.

Dated the .20d October 2020

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Jacqueline Ezeokwelume
Company Secretary
FRC/2015/NBA/00000020208

Lagos, Nigeria
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The Directors of PZ Cussons Nigeria PLC are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements that gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and Company as at 31 May 2020, and the
results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended, in compliance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Migeria, Cap C20 LFN
2004 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are responsible for:

¢ properly selecting and applying accounting policies;

¢ presenting information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

¢ providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group's financial position
and financial performance;

¢ making an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern;

s designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls throughaout the Group and
Company;

® maintaining adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group and Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and Company, and
which enable them to ensure that the financial statements of the Group and Company comply with IFRS;

® maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with the legislation of Nigeria and IFRS;

¢ taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and Company; and

e preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors have made an assessment of the Group and Company's ability to continue as a going concern and have no
reason to believe the Group and Company will not remain a going concern in the year ahead.

The consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and Company for the year ended 31 May 2020 were

- approved by the Directors on .20 O%tober @ @, 2020.
SIGNED ON/BEHALF O ITE; BOARD OF DIRECTORS BY: x
—— / [
Chief Kolawole Jamodu, CFR “~Mr. Panagiotis Katsis
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
FRC/2013/1CAN/0D000001617 FRC/2020/003/00000021969

X
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Report of the Audit Commitiee

To the mermbers of PZ Cussons Nigaria Plc

In greparing these financial statements, the Directors are rasponsible far:

a) Reviewed the scops and planning of the audit requirements znd found them adequate

bj Reviewed the financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2020 and are satisfied with the explanations
obtained;

cl Reviewed the external auditors' management letter for the year ended 31 May 2028 and are satisfied that
management is taking appropriate steps to address the issuas raised; and

d) Ascertalned that the accounting and reporting policies for the year ended 31 May 2020 are in accordance with

legal requirements and agreed ethical practices

The external auditors confirm

havin réa'eived full cooperation from the Company's managament and that the scope of
their work was not restrictegin a K

ny way. /

Mrs. E. Ebi Wy
FRC/2014/CISN000000CB003

m( Lo

e e DO

Members of the Audit Committes

Mrs. E. Ebi {Chairman) independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. O.l. Obarinde Sharehoiders' representative
Mr, E.A. Akinduro Sharehoiders' representative
Hon. B. Nwabughogu Shareholders' representative
Mallam L. Batagarawa Non-Executive Director
Mr. A. Goma Executive Director {Retirad)
Mr. G. Sotiropoulos (Greek) Executive Director
i
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements of PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc (“the Company”)
and its subsidiary (together referred to as the group), which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial
position as at 31 May 2020, and the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity and the consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the
year then ended, the notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated and separate
financial position of PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc as at 31 May 2020 and its consolidated and separate financial performance and
consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the
requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act and Financial Reporting Council Act, 2011.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group and Company in accordance with the requirements of the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ (IESBA) International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (IESBA code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and
other ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements in Nigeria.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated and
separate financial statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated and
separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on the
matter.
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Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

As indicated in Note 6 (Other long-term receivables) and Note 28 (Export
expansion grant <EEG> scheme), the group and the company had EEG Receivable
of N1.617 billion and N1.598 billion as well as unutilised Negotiable Duty Credit
Certificate <NDCC> (now called Export Credit Certificate<ECC>) of N0.297 billion
and N0.272 billion respectively as at 31 May 2020.

EEG receivable is recognised upon receipt of export proceeds into the country not
later than 180 days from the date of related export sales while unutilised NDCC is
recognised on issuance of certificates by the Nigerian Export Promotion Council
(NEPC) for the settlement of EEG receivable.

In the last 6 years, the EEG scheme has not been operating as designed based on
the following:

Exporters have not been able to submit valid EEG claims to the Nigerian Export
Promotion Council (NEPC), the Federal Government of Nigeria (FGN) agency
responsible for the administration of EEG Scheme since January 2014 till date.

® The NEPC stopped issuance of NDCC for settlement of EEG Receivable in January
2014,

® Previously issued NDCC in the custody of beneficiaries remained unutilised for
more than 6 years due to non-acceptance of the NDDC by the Nigerian Customs
Service for settlement of import duties in lieu of cash.

e The authority issued a revised guideline on 12 June, 2017. The NDCC has now
been replaced with the Export Credit Certificate (ECC) which can be used to settle
all federal government taxes such as VAT, WHT, company income tax etc. It can
also be used to purchase government bonds and repay government credit facilities,
and debts due to the Assets Management Company of Nigeria (AMCON).

Per management assessment, both the EEG and unutilised NDCC are sovereign
debts. Hence, management is confident that the balances are majorly recoverable
because government is a continuum. However, an impairment charge of
N34.3million was recognised with respect to the EEG receivable in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the course of the year as that portion of the EEG
was determined to be irrecoverable

Management applied significant judgement in relation to retention of EEG
Receivable and unutilised NDCC and this forms the basis of our focus on the
balances.

Impairment of Export Expansion Grant (EEG) Receivable and Unutilised Negotiable Duty Credit Certificates (NDCC)

We obtained an understanding of the
group’s accounting policy on EEG
receivable and unutilised NDCC and
evaluated it for compliance with the
requirements of International Accounting
Standard (IAS 20) — Government Grant, and
the Nigerian Export Promotion Council
(NEPC) Act.

We tested the carrying value of EEG
Receivables and unutilised NDCC for
compliance with the company’s
accounting policy. In particular, we
examined relevant support documents to
substantiate that proceeds of related
export sales, supporting the carrying value
of EEG receivables, were repatriated within
180 days of sales. In addition, we
performed procedures to ascertain that the
group has met the following criteria EEG
receivables:

- the Group is registered with NEPC

- the Group has annual export sales
proceeds in excess of N5 million; and

- the group exports only made in Nigeria
goods.

We evaluated the impact of the revised
guideline issued on 12 June, 2017 by NEPC
on EEG and the request for submission of
the NDCC for onward conversion to
government sovereign bonds. Also, we
reviewed correspondences with NEPC
confirming that the NDCC (now ECC)
certificates have now been submitted to
the NEPC.

The judgement and assumptions made by the
This is considered a key audit matter in both the consolidated and separate directors for the assets impairment test were
financial statements. found to be appropriate.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the directors’ Report, Audit Committee’s
Report, Chairman'’s statement, statement of directors responsibilities, corporate information and financial highlights, which we
obtained prior to the date of this report, and the Annual Report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date. The
other information does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will
not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Deloitte.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, the
Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the

preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group and / or the Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

» l|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Company’s
internal control.

®  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s and the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and / or the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee and the directors regarding, amang other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee and directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee and the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the benefits derivable by the public from such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies and Allied Matters Act we expressly state that:

i) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purpose of our audit.

ii) The Group have kept proper books of account, so far as appears from our examination of those books.

iii} The Group and Company’s financial position, statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are in
agreement with the books of account and returns.

Hassan Lawal, FCA - FRC/2013/1CAN/000000001382 T =
For: Deloitte & Touche 1 : it
Chartered Accountants
Lagos, Nigeria

02 October 2020




PZ CUSSONS NIGERIA PLC

Consolidated and separate statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

In thousands of naira
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Operating (loss)/ profit

Exchange loss
Otherincome
Interest income
Interest cost

(Loss)/profit before tax
Income tax expense

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive (expense)/
income for the year

Equity holders of the parent company

Non-controlling interest

(Loss)/basic earnings per share (kobo)

Mote
21b
20a

203
203

20b

21a
29
29

15

23

Annual report and consolidated financial statements

31 May 2020

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
66,992,561 74,336,468 38,939,223 47,200,919
(58,370,711) (57,235,233) (34,404,445) (34,997,013)
8,621,850 17,101,235 4,534,778 12,203,906
(10,213,698) (10,695,229) (6,398,454) (7,406,105)
(5,476,899) (4,132,994) (4,661,517) (3,769,694)
(7,068,747) 2,273,012 (6,525,193) 1,028,107
(945,860) (444,277) (248,873) (381,673)
179,135 122,742 319,761 263,313
304,971 294,997 338,419 393,512
(454,234) (304,027) (276,515) (175,868)
(7,984,735) 1,942,447 {6,392,401) 1,127,391
745,176 (786,596) 425,406 (549,036)
(7,239,559) 1,155,851 (5,966,995) 578,355
(7,239,559) 1,155,851 (5,966,995} 578,355
(6,921,291) 1,011,420 (5,966,995) 578,355
(318,268) 144 431 - -
(7,239,559) 1,155,851 (5,966,995) 578,355
(1.74) 0.25 (1.50) 0.15

The accompanying notes on pages 10 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.



PZ CUSSONS NIGERIA PLC
Annua! report and consolidated financial statements

31 May 2020
Consolidated and separate statement of financial position
As at 31 May 2020

Group Company

in thousands of naira Note 2020 2019 2020 2019
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4a 25,190,242 27,340,861 24,628,963 25,858,961
Right-of-use assets b 275,042 - 208,724 -
Intangible assets 4c 741,732 847,694 741,732 847,694
Investment in subsidiary 5 - - 504,406 504,406
Other long term receivables 6 1,914,526 1,990,470 1,870,028 1,845,433
Total non-current assets 29,121,542 30,179,0?5___ 27,954,753 29,156,494
Current assets
Inventories 7 26,258,699 28,595,056 15,654,747 19,168,436
Trade and other receivables 8 8,016,571 13,281,886 4,087,173 8,028,500
Loan receivables 9 2,049,000 1,883,300 2,049,000 3,464,576
Other assets 10 1,010,312 1,270,003 849,486 920,003
Deposits for imports 11 1,202,075 2,204,023 318,369 1,590,536
Cash and cash equivalents 12 10,792,938 2,518,847 8,573,322 1,987,131
Total current assets 49,329,595 49,757,715 31,532,097 35,159,182
Total assets 78,451,137 79,936,740 59,486,850 64,315,676
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 13 1,985,238 1,985,238 1,985,238 1,985,238
Share premium 6,878,269 6,878,269 6,273,269 6,878,269
Retained earnings 22,923,165 33,797,232 15,033,304 24,953,075
Equity attributable to equity holders of parent company 31,786,672 ’ 42,660,739 23,896,811 33,816,582
Non-controlling interest 2,773,281 3,091,549 - z -
Total Equity 34,553,953 45,752,288 23,896,811 33,816,582
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income 14 61,047 - 6,605 -
Deferred taxation 16 5,368,628 3,214,813 6,852,605 4,221,430
Warranty provisions 17 245418 76,320 - =
Lease Liability ab 119847 s = 91,887 =
Total non-current liabilities 5,795,000 3,291,133 6,951,097 4,221,430
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 37,200,556 29,343 478 28,037,464 25,835,801
Loan payables 19 = 1,173,870 - 248,870
Deferred income 14 20,827 - 20,827 -
Current taxation payable 15 620,176 192,993 462,814 192,993
Warcanty provisions 17 99,430 183,028 = “
Lease Liability 4b 155,195 . 117,837 -
Total current liahilities 38,096,184 30,893,319 28,638,942 26,277,664
Total liabilities 43,891,184 34,184,452 35,590,039 30,499,094
Total equity and liabilities 78,451,137 79,936,740 59,486,850 64,315,676

=4/ _ A

yChief‘lfoMe Jamodu, CFR Mir. ﬁanagiotis Katsis Wir. Zuber Momoniat Mr. Evans Eghosa Enabulele
Chairman Chief Executive Officer ChiefHinancial Officer Head, Financial Reporting & Accounting
FRC/2013/iCAN/D0000001617 FRC/2020/003/00000021969  FRE/2018/10DN/00000018772 FRC/2017/ICAN/00000017

The accampanying notes on pages 10 to 73 form an integral part of these fifancial statements.



PZ CUSSONS NIGERIA PLC
Annual report and consolidated financial statements

31 May 2020
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Group
Attributable to owners
In thousands of naira Non-
Share Share Retained controlling Total

Note capital premium earnings interest equity
Balance at 1 June 2019 1,985,238 6,878,269 33,797,232 3,091,549 45,752,288
Adjustment on initial application of
IFRIC 23 16.2 - - (3,517,328) - (3,517,328)
Adjusted balance at 1 June 2019 1,985,238 6,878,269 30,279,904 3,091,549 42,234,960
Comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year - - (6,921,291) (318,268) (7,239,559)
Total comprehensive income for the
year - - (6,921,291) (318,268) (7,239,559}
Transactions with owners
Final dividend paid relating to year
ended 31 May 2019 18.1a : - (595,572) . (595,572)
Unclaimed divided forfeited 18.1b - - 160,124 - 160,124
Total transactions with owners,
recorded directly in equity - (435,448) - (435,448)
Balance at 31 May 2020 1,985,238 6,878,269 22,923,165 2,773,281 34,559,953
Balance at 1 June 2018 1,985,238 6,878,269 33,297,964 2,947,118 45,108,589
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year = - 1,011,420 144 431 1,155,851
Total comprehensive income for the
year = = 1,011,420 144,431 1,155,851
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity
Final dividend paid relating to year
ended 31 May 2018 18.1a = - (595,572) - (595,572)
Unclaimed divided forfeited 18.1b - - 83,420 - 83,420
Total transactions with owners,
recorded directly in equity - - 1512,152) - (512,152)
Balance at 31 May 2019 1,985,238 6,878,269 33,797,232 3,091,549 45,752,288

The accompanying notes on pages 10 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.



PZ CUSSONS NIGERIA PLC
Annual report and consolidated financial statements

31 May 2020
Separate statement of changes in equity
Company
Attributable to owners

In thousands of naira Share Share Retained Total

Note capital premium earnings equity
Balance at 1 June 2019 1,985,238 6,878,269 24,953,075 33,816,582
Adjustment on initial application of IFRIC 23 16.2 - - (3,517,328) (3,517,328)
Adjusted balance at 1 June 2019 1,985,238 6,878,269 21,435,747 30,299,254
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - — (5,966,995) (5,966,995)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (5,966,995) (5,966,995)
Transactions with owners
Final dividend paid relating to year ended 31 May
2019 18.1a - - (595,572) (595,572)
Unclaimed divided forfeited 18.1b - - 160,124 160,124
Total transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity - - (435,448) (435,448)
Balance at 31 May 2020 1,985,238 6,878,269 15,033,304 23,896,811
Balance at 1 June 2018 1,985,238 6,878,269 24,886,872 33,750,379
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year = . 578,355 578,355
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 578,355 578,355
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in
equity
Final dividend paid relating to year ended 31 May
2018 18.1a - = (595,572) (595,572)
Unclaimed divided forfeited 18.1b - - 83420 83,420
Total transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity - g (512,152) (512,152)
Balance at 31 May 2019 1,985,238 6,878,269 24,953,075 33,816,582

The accompanying notes on pages 10 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.



Consolidated and separate statement of cash flows

In thousands of naira

Cash flow from operating activities
(Loss)/Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation - property, plant &
equipment

Depreciation - right-of-use assets
Amortization

Profit on disposal of fixed assets
Unclaimed dividend forfeited
Interest expense

Interest income

Change in:

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Other assets

Trade and other payables
Deposit for imports

Cash generated from operating activities
Income tax paid

Net cash generated/(used in) from
operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Interest income

Loan receivables

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment

Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

Met cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends paid

Interest expense paid

Lease payment

Loan payables

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 June

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 May 2020

Note

4a
4b
ac
21a
18.1b
29
29

15

29

21a

43

18.1a
29
4b
19

12

PZ CUSSONS NIGERIA PLC
Annual report and consolidated financial statements

31 May 2020

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
(7,984,735) 1,942,447 (6,392,401) 1127391
2,690,254 2,543,853 2,496,349 2,348,655
190,362 - 147,856 -
105,962 105,962 105,962 105,962
(1,500) - (1,500) -
# 83,420 S 83,420
454,234 304,027 276,515 175,868
(304,971) (294,997) (338,419) (393,512)
(4,850,394) 4,684,712 (3,705,638) 3,447,784
2,340,357 (2,559,510) 3,513,689 1,206,033
5,265,315 (1,805,095) 3,941,327 1,080,055
259,691 247,512 70,517 551,909
8,069,917 (10,765,487) 2,274,140 (10,476,570)
1,001,948 132,763 1,272,167 177,351
12,086,834 {10,065,105) 7,366,202 {4,013,438)
(441) (156,442) (441) (156,442)
12,086,393 {10,221,547) 7,365,761 {4,169,880)
304,971 294,997 338,419 393,512
(165,100) (399,761) 1,415,576 (2,448,576)
1,500 - 1,500 &
(1,539,635) (1,454,385) (1,266,251) (1,325,421)
(1,398,264} {(1,559,149) 489,244 {3,380,485)
(595,572) (595,572) (595,572) (595,572)
(454,234) (304,027) (276,515) (175,868)
(190,362) - (147,856) -
(1,173,870) 1,173,870 (248,870) (1,851,230)
(2,414,038} 274,271 (1,268,813) (2,622,670)
8,274,091 (11,506,425) 6,586,191 (10,173,035)
2,518,847 14,025,271 1,987,131 12,160,166
10,792,938 2,518,847 8,573,322 1,987,131

The accompanying notes on pages 10 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.



PZ CUSSONS NIGERIA PLC
Annual report and consolidated financial statements
31 May 2020

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements

2.1

2.2

General information

The Group

PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc is a Company incorporated in Nigeria on 4 December 1948 under the name of P.B. Nicholas
and Company Limited. The name was changed to Alagbon Industries Limited in 1953 and to Associated Industries
Limited in 1960. The Company became a public Company in 1972 and was granted a listing on the Nigerian Stock
Exchange. The name was changed to Paterson Zochonis Industries Limited on 24 November 1976 and in
compliance with the Companies and Allied Matters Act, it changed its name to Paterson Zochonis Industries Plc on
22 November 1990. On 21 September, 2006, the Company adopted its present name of PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc.

The principal activities of the group are the manufacture, distribution and sale of a wide range of consumer
products and home appliances through owned depots. These products are leading brand names throughout the
country in detergent, soap, cosmetics, refrigerators, freezers and air-conditioners. The group also distributes
products of Nutricima Limited, Harefield Industrial Nigeria Limited and PZ Wilmar Food Limited.

The address of the registered office is 45/47 Town Planning Way, llupeju, Lagos.

These consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in Nigerian Naira which is the functional
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates. The financial statements have been
rounded to the nearest thousands.

These consolidated and separate financial statements comprises that of the group and the stand alone financial
statements of the parent Company.

Summary of significant accounting policies of the Group and Company

Statement of compliance

The Group and Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 May, 2020 have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”), and interpretations International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee of the IASB (together “IFRS”) that are effective during the year ended 31 May, 2020
and requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA) 2004 of Nigeria and the Financial Reporting
Council (FRC) Act of Nigeria.

Basis of preparation and measurement

The preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles under IFRS requires the directors to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the directors' best knowledge of the
amount, event or actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. Disclosed in Note 2.25 are areas where significant
judgement and estimate has been applied in the preparation of these financial statements.

The consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
certain properties and financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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PZ CUSSONS NIGERIA PLC
Annual report and consolidated financial statements
31 May 2020

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements

2.2

211

2.1.2

Basis of preparation and measurement (cont’d)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability that market participants would take into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in 1AS 2
or value in use in IAS 36.

Going concern

The consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Nothing has
come to the attention of the directors that cast doubt about the ability of the Group and Company to continue as
a going concern.

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards

New and amended standards adopted by the group and company
The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for the annual reporting year
commencing 1 June 2019:

e |FRS 16: Leases

e  Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term interest in associates and joint ventures
@  |FRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments

e IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

e Amendments to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, curtailment or settlement

(i) IFRS 16: Leases
In the current year, the Group, for the first time, has applied IFRS 16 'Leases’ (as issued by the I1ASB in
January 2016) that is effective for annual periods that begin on or after 1 January 2019. The date of initial
application of IFRS 16 for the Group is 1 June 2019.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 retrospectively from 1 June 2019, but has not restated comparatives for
the 2019 reporting period, as permitted under the specific transitional provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the
opening Balance Sheet on 1 June 2019.

IFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease accounting. It introduces
significant changes to the lessee accounting by removing the distinction between operating and finance
lease, requiring the recognition of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at commencement for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The Group is not party to any leases where it acts as a lessor, but the Group does have a number of motor
vehicle leases.

Details of the Group's accounting policies under IFRS 16 are set out in Note 2.7, followed by a description
of the impact of adopting IFRS 16. Significant judgements applied in the adoption of IFRS 16 included
determining the lease term for those leases with termination or extension options, and determining an
incremental borrowing rate where the rate implicit in a lease could not be readily determined.
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PZ CUSSONS NIGERIA PLC
Annual report and consolidated financial statements
31 May 2020

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements

2.1.2

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

New and amended standards adopted by the group and company (cont’d)

(ii)

(i)

Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term interest in associates and joint ventures

The amendment clarifies that IFRS 9 including its impairment requirements, applies to long-term
interests. Furthermore, applying IFRS 9 to long term interest, an entity does not take account adjustments
to their carrying amounts required by IAS 28 (i.e. adjustments to the carrying amount of long-term
interests arising from the allocation of losses of the investee or assessment impairment of impairment in
accordance with IAS 28). The application of the amendments does not have any impact on the Group's
consolidated and separate financial statements.

IFRIC 23: Uncertainty over income tax treatments
The group has adopted IFRIC 23 which clarifies the application of recognition and measurement
requirements in IAS 12 Income Taxes when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments.

IFRIC 23 sets out how to determine the accounting tax position when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments. The Interpretation requires an entity to:

e determine whether uncertain tax positions are assessed separately or as a group; and
e assess whether it is probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment used, or
proposed to be used, by an entity in its income tax filings

- Ifyes, the entity should determine its accounting tax position consistently with the tax treatment
used or planned to be used in its income tax filings.
- Ifno, the entity should reflect the effect of uncertainty in determining its accounting tax position.

Transition
On initial application of IFRIC 23, an entity shall apply this Interpretation either:
a. retrospectively applying IAS 8, if that is possible without the use of hindsight; or

b. retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Interpretation recognised at
the date of initial application. If an entity selects this transition approach, it shall not restate
comparative information. Instead, the entity shall recognise the cumulative effect of initially
applying the Interpretation as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or
other component of equity, as appropriate). The date of initial application is the beginning of
the annual reporting period in which an entity first applies this Interpretation.

In the normal course of business, the group engages in transactions with several parties within and
outside the group and in accounting for these transactions, uncertainty over income tax treatment could
arise with respect to income taxes, deferred taxation, transfer pricing and other statutory tax obligations.

The group considers the effect of the uncertainty in determining its taxable profit/(loss), tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits or tax rates.

In terms of applying IFRIC 23, an entity shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax
treatment by using either of the following methods, depending on which method the entity expects to
better predict the resolution of the uncertainty:

a. the most likely amount —the single most likely amount in a range of possible outcomes. The
most likely amount may better predict the resolution of the uncertainty if the possible outcomes
are binary or are concentrated on one value.

b. the expected value — the sum of the probability-weighted amounts in a range of possible
outcomes. The expected value may better predict the resolution of the uncertainty if there is a
range of possible outcomes that are neither hinary nor concentrated on one value.
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2.1.2

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

New and amended standards adopted by the group and company (cont’d)

(iii)

(iv)

{v)

IFRIC 23: Uncertainty over income tax treatments (cont’d)

If an uncertain tax treatment affects current tax and deferred tax (for example, if it affects both taxable
profit used to determine current tax and tax bases used to determine deferred tax), an entity shall make
consistent judgements and estimates for both current tax and deferred tax.

The Group used the “most likely” method for calculating the provision as there is insufficient evidence
available to use an expected value approach. The uncertain tax treatment where made into current tax
and deferred tax in line with applicable standards.

The Group has adopted IFRIC 23 for the first time and have elected to recognize the cumulative effect
of adopting the standard by adjusting the opening retained earnings without restating the comparative
information in line with the transition requirements (See Note 16.2).

IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a prepayment feature meets
the SPPI condition, the party exercising the option may pay or receive reasonable compensation for the
prepayment irrespective of the reason for prepayment. In other words, prepayment features with
negative compensation do not automatically fail SPPI. The amendment has no impact on the group's
consolidated and separate financial statements.

Amendments to 1AS 19: Plan Amendment, curtailment or settlement

The amendments clarify that the past service cost {or of the gain or loss on settlement) is calculated by
measuring the defined benefit liability (asset) using updated assumptions and comparing benefits offered
and plan assets before and after the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) but ignoring the
effect of the asset ceiling (that may arise when the defined benefit plan is in a surplus position). IAS 19 is
now clear that the change in the effect of the asset ceiling that may result from the plan amendment (or
curtailment or settlement) is determined in a second step and is recognised in the normal manner in other
comprehensive income.

The paragraphs that relate to measuring the current service cost and the net interest on the net defined
benefit liability (asset) have also been amended. An entity will now be required to use the updated
assumptions from this re-measurement to determine current service cost and net interest for the
remainder of the reporting period after the change to the plan. In the case of the net interest, the
amendments make it clear that for the period post plan amendment, the net interest is calculated by
multiplying the net defined benefit liability (or asset) as re-measured under IAS 19 with the discount rate
used in the re-measurement (also taking into account the effect of contributions and benefit payments
on the net defined benefit liability (or asset).

These amendments have no impact on the group's accounts.
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2.1.2

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

New and amended standards adopted by the group and company {cont’d)

(vi)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle
These improvements include:

IFRS 11: Joint Arrangements

The amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when a party that participates in, but does not have joint control
of, a joint operation that is a business obtains joint control of such a joint operation, the entity does not
remeasure its PHI in the joint operation. All the amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019 and generally require prospective application. Earlier application is permitted.
The directors of the group do not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will
have an impact on the financial statements.

IFRS 3: Business Combinations

The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that is ajoint
operation, the entity applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages, including
remeasuring its previously held interest (PHI) in the joint operation at fair value. The PHI to be remeasured
includes any unrecognised assets, liabilities and goodwill relating to the joint operation. The amendments
have no impact on the financial statements.

I1AS 12: Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that an entity should recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in
profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised
the transactions that generated the distributable profits. This is the case irrespective of whether different
tax rates apply to distributed and undistributed profits. The directors of the group do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments in the future will have an impact on the group's financial statements.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have
a material impact on the group.

IAS 23: Borrowing Cost

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready
for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally
when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings. The directors of the group do not
anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have an impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

New and amended standards adopted by the group and company (cont’d)

New accounting standards issued but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRS standards that have beenissued but are not yet effective.

{wii)

(viii)

IFRS 17: Insurance contracts
The new standard establishes the principle for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance contracts

The standard outlines a General Model, which is modified for insurance contracts with direct participation
features described as the Variable Fee Approach. The General Model is simplified if certain criteria are
met by measuring the liability for remaining coverage using the Premium Allocation Approach.

The General Model will use current assumptions to estimate the amount, timing and uncertainty of future
cash flows and it will explicitly measure the cost of that uncertainty, it takes into account market interest
rates and the impact of policyholders' option and guarantees.

The implementation of the Standard is unlikely to bring significant changes entity’s processes, systems
and financial statements as the Group does not hold insurance contracts.

The standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with early
application permitted as long as IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 are also applied.

For the purpose of the transition requirements, the date of initial application is the start if the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the Standard, and the transition date is the beginning of
the period immediately preceding the date of initial application. The directors of the Group do not
anticipate that the application of the Standard in the future will have an impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture.

Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary
that does not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture.

Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method)
to fair value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by the IASB; however, earlier application of the
amendments is permitted. The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these
amendments may have an impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in future periods
should such transactions arise.
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2.1.2

2.3

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards {cont’d)
New and amended standards adopted by the group and company (cont’d)
New accounting standards issued but not yet effective {cont’d)

{ix) Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a business
The amendments clarify that while businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not required for an
integrated set of activities and assets to qualify as a business. To be considered a business an acquired set
of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

Additional guidance is provided that helps to determine whether a substantive process has been acquired.

The amendments introduce an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. Under the optional concentration test,
the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar assets.

The amendments are applied prospectively to all business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is on or after the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020,
with early application permitted. The amendments could have material impact should such transactions
occur in the future,

{x) Amendments to 1AS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of material
The amendments are intended to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are
not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. The concept of ‘obscuring’
material information with immaterial information has been included as part of the new definition.”

The threshold for materiality influencing users has been changed from ‘could influence’ to ‘could
reasonably be expected to influence’.

The definition of material in IAS 8 has been replaced by a reference to the definition of material in 1AS 1.
In addition, the IASB amended other Standards and the Conceptual Framework that contain a definition
of material or refer to the term ‘material’ to ensure consistency.

The amendments are applied prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with
earlier application permitted. The directors do not anticipate this to have material impact on the financial
statements.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary.
Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;
e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
e  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. When the Company has less than a majority
of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it
the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
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23

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company's voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other
vote holders;

s  potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties; rights arising from other
contractual arrangements;

e rights arising from other contractual agreements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consclidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity therein. Those interests
of non-controlling shareholders that are present ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets upon liquidation may initially be measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests'
proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement is made
on an acquisition by acquisition basis. Other non-controlling interests are initially measured at fair value.
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests' share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amount of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised in profit or loss is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), less liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
required/permitted by applicable IFRS Standards). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments when applicable, or the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions bet ween
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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2.4

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

¢ deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquire are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests' proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets.

The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another IFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair
value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the 'measurement period' {which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.

Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Other contingent consideration is remeasured to fair value

at subsequent reporting dates with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
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25

26

2.6:1

Business combinations (cont’d)

Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognized
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.

Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Executive Management which
comprises the five Executive Directors.

An operating segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that earns revenue and incurs expenditure
from providing related products or services (business segment), or providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment), and which is subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other segments.

The primary format for segment reporting is based on business segments. The business segments are determined
by management based on the Company's internal reporting structure.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods or services, in the
ordinary course of the Company's activities and it is stated net of value added tax (VAT), rebates and returns. A
valid contract is recognised as revenue after the below conditions are met:

The contract is approved by the parties

Rights and obligations are recognised

Collectability is probable

The contract has commercial substance; and

The payment terms and consideration are identifiable.

The probability that a customer would make payment is ascertained based on the evaluation done on the customer
as stated in the credit management policy at the inception of the contract. The Company is the principal in all of
its revenue arrangement since it is the primary obligor in most of the revenue arrangements, has inventory risk
and determines the pricing for the goods and services.

Sale of goods

For sales of consumer goods to the wholesale market, revenue is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been shipped to the wholesaler's specific location (delivery). Following
delivery, the wholesaler has full discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has the
primary responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the
goods. A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered to the wholesaler as this represents
the point in time at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is required
before payment is due.
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2.6.1

2.6.2

263

2.7

Sale of goods (cont’d)

Under the Group's standard contract terms, customers have a right of return within 30 days. At the point of sale,
a refund liability and a corresponding adjustment to revenue is recognised for those products expected to be
returned. At the same time, the Group has a right to recover the product when customers exercise their right of
return so consequently recognises a right to returned goods asset and a corresponding adjustment to cost of sales.

The Group uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate the number of returns on a portfolio level using
the expected value method. Itis considered highly probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur given the consistent level of returns over previous years.

For sales of electronic equipment to the wholesale market, revenue is recognised by the Group at a pointin time
in line with the policy outlined above for the sale of consumer goods. There exists the same 30 day right of return
and accordingly a refund liability and a right to returned goods asset are recognised in relation to electronic
equipment expected to be returned.

Tradex

Tradex consists primarily of customer pricing allowances and promotional allowances, are governed by agreements
with our trade customers. Accruals are recognised under the terms of these agreements, to reflect the expected
promotional activity and our historical experience. These accruals are reported within trade and other payables.

The Group provides for amounts payable to trade customers for promotional activity. Where a promotional activity
spans across the year end, an accrual is reflected in the Group accounts based on our expectation of consumer
uptake during the promotional period and the extent to which temporary promotional activity has occurred.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably). Dividends which remained unclaimed for a period exceeding twelve (12) years
from the date of declaration and which are no longer actionable by shareholders in accordance with Section 385
of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004 are written back to
retained earnings.

Leases
The Group's leasing activities and its accounting policies are covered under IFRS 16 Leases.

The nature of the Group's leasing activities is mainly motor vehicle, which are prepaid for at inception. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 3 years but may have extension options as described in (i) below:

i Extension and termination options
Extension and termination options are included in a number of motor vehicle leases across the Group.
These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. Until the FY20 financial year, leases of property, plant and equipment were classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor)
were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the contract. The Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements
in which it is the lessee, except for short term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less} and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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27 Leases (cont’d)
i Extension and termination options (cont’d)

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

o fixed lease payments (including in substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate
at the commencement date; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option
to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the consolidated and separate statement of financial
position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made.

The Group measures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
asset) whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option,
in which case the lease liability is measured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate.

e thelease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under
a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is measured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change
in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

e  alease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in
which case the lease liability is measured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate.

The Group did not make any such adjustments during the period presented.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease
payments made at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the
site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under IAS 37. The costs are included in
the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.
The Group has leases that include purchase options or transfer ownership of the underlying asset.
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2.7 Leases (cont’d)

The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line "other operating expenses" in the
consolidated and separate statement of profit/(loss) and other comprehensive income.

For short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets, the Group has
opted to recognise a lease expense on a straight-line basis as permitted by IFRS 16. This expense is
presented within administrative expenses in the consolidated and separate statement of profit/loss and
other comprehensive income.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead
account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Group has not
used this practical expedient.

Approach to transition

The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach, without restatement of the
comparative information. In respect of those leases the Group previously treated as operating leases, the
Group has elected to measure its right-of-use assets arising from property leases using the approach set
out in IFRS 16.C8(b)(ii). Under IFRS 16, the right-of-use assets are calculated as if the Standard applied at
lease commencement, but discounted using the borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

Other leases previously treated as operating leases have been measured following the approach in IFRS
16.C8(b)(ii), whereby right-of-use assets are set equal to the lease liability, adjusted for prepaid or accrued
lease payments, including unamortised lease incentives.

Practical expedients adopted on transition

The Group has made use of the practical expedient available on transition to IFRS 16 not to reassess
whether a contract is or contains a lease. Accordingly, the definition of a lease in accordance with IAS 17
and IFRIC 4 will continue to be applied to those leases entered into or modified before 1 June 2019.

As part of the Group's adoption of IFRS 16 and application of the modified retrospective approach to
transition, the Group also elected to use the following practical expedients:

e asingle discount rate has been applied to portfolios of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;
right-of-use assets have been adjusted by the carrying amount of onerous lease provisions at 31 May
2019 instead of performing impairment reviews under IAS 36.

e reliance on the previous identification of a lease (under I1AS 17) for all contracts that existed on 1 June
2019; exclusion of indirect costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at 1 June 2019.

e the accounting for operating leases with a remaining term of less than 12 months as at 1 June 2019
as short-term leases: and

e the use of hindsight in determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.
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2.7

2.8

Leases (cont’d)
iv. Impact on lessee accounting

Former operating leases
IFRS 16 changes how the Group accounts for leases previously classified as operating leases under 1AS 17, which
were off-balance sheet.

Applying IFRS 16, for all leases (except as noted above), the Group now recognises right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities in the consolidated and separate statement of financial position, initially measured at the present
value of the future lease payments as described above.

Lease incentives (e.g. rent free periods) are recognised as part of the measurement of the right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities whereas under IAS 17 they resulted in the recognition of a lease incentive liability, amortised
as a reduction of rental expenses on a straight-line basis.

Under IFRS 16, 'right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 'Impairment of Assets'.
This replaces the previous requirement to recognise a provision for onerous lease contracts.

Under IFRS 16 the Group recognises depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities in the
consolidated and separate statement of profit/loss and other comprehensive income, whereas under IAS
17 operating leases previously gave rise to a straight-line expense in other operating expenses.

Under IFRS 16 the Group separates the total amount of cash paid for leases that are on-balance sheet into a
principal portion (presented within financing activities) and interest (presented within operating activities) in
the consolidated and separate statement of cash flow. Under IAS 17 operating lease payments were presented
as operating cash outflows.

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The consolidated and separate financial
statements are presented in 'Nigerian Naira' (N).

Transactions and balances

In preparing the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity's
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

e exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

e exchange differences on transactions entered into to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see below under financial
instruments/hedge accounting); and

e exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future (therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the net investment.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented net in the
income statement within finance income or cost. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented separately
in the income statement where material.
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2.9

2.10

2.10.1

2.10.2

2.10.3

2.11

Finance income and expense
Finance income and expense are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they are earned or
incurred.

Interest income and expense are recognised using the effective interest method.
Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit - Gratuity scheme
PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc gratuity scheme is a short-term employee benefit that is computed based on the agreement
between PZ Cussons Nigeria Pic and Staff of PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc dated 31 December 2006.

The scheme expense is computed on a monthly basis based on the length of service of the employee and the gross
pay of the employee for the year under consideration. The scheme is funded directly using the Group's cash flow
and expensed to the income statement appropriately.

The PZ Cussons Nigerian Plc gratuity scheme runs from January to December of each year and it is paid in the
month of February of the subsequent year. The gratuity scheme obligation at the end of each year relates to
gratuity award for January to May that are due to be paid to staff but unpaid as at year end.

The scheme is only applicable for staff engaged before 1 January 2007 hence, all staff employed subsequently are
not covered by the scheme.

Defined contribution scheme

The group operates a defined contribution plan. The defined contribution plan pays a fixed contribution into a
separate entity. Hence, the group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contribution if the fund
does not hold sufficient asset to pay all the employees the benefits relating to employees' service in the current
and prior period.

The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are due. The group has no further
payment obligation once the contributions have been paid. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payment is available. The group and employees each
contribute 15% and 10% respectively in accordance with the Pension Reform Act (PRA 2014) as amended.

Incentive and bonus scheme
The group recognises a liability and expense for incentive and bonus scheme based on the formula that takes into
consideration the group's objectives (net sales, operating contribution and net working capital).

The group recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Current and Deferred tax

The tax for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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2.11

Current and Deferred tax (cont’d)

A provision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is considered
probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to a tax authority. The provisions are measured at the best
estimate of the amount expected to become payable. The assessment is based on the judgement of tax
professionals within the Group supported by previous experience in respect of such activities and in certain cases
based on specialist independent tax advice.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable nor the accounting
profit. In addition, a deferred tax liability is not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
except where the group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or
the asset is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
group intends to settle its current tax liabilities on a net basis.

Current tax and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from

the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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2.12

2.13

Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and subsequently stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Land and buildings comprise mainly of buildings for factories and offices.

Historical cost includes purchase costs, expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items and
the estimate of the cost of decommissioning (dismantling, removing the asset and restoring the site}.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company or the
group and the cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced cost is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings - Over 50 years 2%
. Under 50 years Over the lease period
Plant and Machinery 4% -8%
Motor Vehicles 25%
Furniture, fittings and IT equipment 20% -33.3%
Capital work in progress Nil

Depreciation on revalued buildings is recognised in profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the properties revaluation reserve is
transferred directly to retained earnings.

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from continue use of the asset. Gain or loss arising on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of assets and is
recognised in the profit or loss.

Capital work in progress represents assets under construction. Accordingly, they are not depreciated until they are
completed and available for use.

The annual rates of depreciation are consistent with those of prior year.

Property, plant and equipment that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Property, plant
and equipment that suffer impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each balance sheet
date.

Warranty

Provision for products warranty is made at the time of revenue recognition and reflects the estimated costs of
replacement and free-of-charge services that will be incurred by the group with respect to the products. Initial
recognition is based on historical experience. Adequacy of provision is accessed on a monthly basis; and any
resultant adjustment is reflected in the income statement of the period.
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2.14

2.15

2.15.1

Non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s consolidated and separate statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

e  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets; and

e  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Despite the foregoing, the Group may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a
financial asset:

e the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if certain criteria are met (see (iii) below); and

e the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch (see (iv) below:
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2.15.1

Financial assets (cont’d)

Classification of financial assets {cont’d)

(i)

(i1

Amortised cost and effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are
credit impaired on initial recognition), the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit
losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit
impaired financial assets, a credit adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the
estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument
on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured
subsequently at amortised cost and at FVTOCI. For financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit impaired (see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become credit impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If,
in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets, the Group recognises interest income by
applying the credit adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial
recognition.

The calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the financial asset subsequently
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit impaired.

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI
The corporate bonds held by the Group are classified as at FVTOCI. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 2.1. The corporate bonds are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.

Subsequently, changes in the carrying amount of these corporate bonds as a result of foreign exchange
gains and losses (see below), impairment gains or losses (see below), and interest income calculated using
the effective interest method (see (i) above) are recognised in profit or loss. The amounts that are
recognised in profit or loss are the same as the amounts that would have been recognised in profit or loss
if these corporate bonds had been measured at amortised cost. All other changes in the carrying amount
of these corporate bonds are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve. When these corporate bonds are derecognised, the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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2.15.1 Financial assets {cont’d)

Classification of financial assets (cont’d)

(i)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument by instrument basis)
to designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if
the equity investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by an acquirerin a
business combination,

A financial asset is held for trading if:

® it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

® on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit taking; or

e it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging and effective hedging instrument).

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.

Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve. The
cumulative gain orloss is not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, instead,
it is transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
IFRS 9, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends
are included in the ‘finance income’ line item (Note 29) in profit or loss.

The Group does not have and neither have they designated any investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading as at FVTOCI on initial application of IFRS 9.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (see (i) to
(iii) above) are measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

e Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent consideration arising from a business
combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition (see (iii) above).

e Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria (see (i) and (ii)
above) are classified as at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortised cost
criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (so called
‘accounting mismatch’) that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains
and losses on them on different bases. The Group has not designated any debt instruments as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a designated hedging
relationship. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in Group accounting policies (Note 2.1).
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2.15.1

Financial assets (cont’d)

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group considers all highly liquid unrestricted investments with less than three months maturity from the date of
acquisition to be cash equivalents. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement
of cash flows.

Foreign exchange gains and losses
The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. Specifically;

e for financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item;

e for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences on the amortised cost of the debt instrument are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘other gains and
losses’ line item. Other exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income in the investments
revaluation reserve;

e forfinancial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item; and

e for equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
in the investments revaluation reserve.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments that are measured
at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables and contract assets, as well as on financial guarantee
contracts. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables. The expected
credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where
appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12 month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12 month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that financial assets that meet either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

e When there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor; or
s Information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full {(without taking into account any collateral held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90

days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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2.15.1

2.15.2

Financial assets (cont’d)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner unless in case where there is sufficient security. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of afinancial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase
part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of
the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL' or ‘other financial liabilities'.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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2.15.2

2.15.3

2.16

Financial liabilities (cont’d)

Loans and borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initially recorded at fair value, net of direct issue costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption
and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis through the Income Statement using the effective interest
method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the year in
which they arise.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments.
These foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss for financial liabilities that are not part of a
designated hedging relationship.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group exchanges with the existing lender one debt instrument into another one with the substantially
different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition
of a new financial liability. Similarly, the Group accounts for substantial modification of terms of an existing liability or
part of it as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new liability.

Itis assumed that the terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new
terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original effective rate is at least 10 per
cent different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability. If the
modification is not substantial, the difference between: (1) the carrying amount of the liability before the modification;
and (2) the present value of the cash flows after modification should be recognised in profit or loss as the modification
gain or loss within other gains and losses.

Offsetting Financial instrument

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and
only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value. The cost of inventories includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bring them
to their existing location and condition. Cost is calculated based on standard costs with material price and usage
variances apportioned using the Periodic Unit Pricing method. The basis of costing is as follows:

Raw materials, non-returnable packaging materials - purpose cost on a weighted average basis including
and consumable spare parts transportation and applicable clearing charges.
Finished products and products-in-process - weighted average cost of direct materials, labour costs and

a proportion of production overheads based on normal
operating capacity.

Inventory-in-transit - purchase cost incurred to date

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs to
completion and selling expenses. Inventory values are adjusted for obsolete, slow-moving or defective items.
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2.17

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that the group will be required to settle that obligation and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions for restructuring costs are recognised when the company has a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring that has been communicated to affected parties. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognisad as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the company’s shareholders. In respect of interim dividends
these are recognised once paid. Dividends which remained unclaimed for a period exceeding twelve (12) years
from the date of declaration and which are no longer actionable by shareholders in accordance with Section 385
of Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria are written back to retained earnings.

Recognition and measurement of investments in subsidiary in separate financial statements of company
Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses in the company’s statement of
financial position. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between disposal proceeds and the
carrying amounts of the investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Deposit for letters of credit
Deposits for letters of credit represent naira deposits for foreign currencies purchased for funding of letters of
credit and forwards as well as futures, all related to imported raw materials, spare parts and machinery

Deposit for letters of credit is initially recognised at fair value and subsequently recognised at fair value less
impairment losses.

Intangible asset

Software acquired is recognized at acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Subsequent expenditures are capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
of the related software. Software maintenance costs are recognized as expenses in the income statement as they
are incurred. Amortisation is recognized in income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life
of the software, from the first day of the first full financial year the software is put into use.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Software are amortised over a period of 10 years in line with the estimated live of the intangible asset.
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2:21.1

2.21.2

222

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation increase.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Earnings per share (EPS)

The Group/Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted

average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.
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2.23

Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets,

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

The fair value of the government loan at below market rate of interest is estimated as the present value of all
future cash flows discounted using the prevailing market rate(s) of interest for a similar instrument with a similar
credit rating. The benefit of the government grant is measured as the difference between the fair value of the loan
and the proceeds received.

Export Expansion Grant ("the grant") from the government is recognised at fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the group has complied with all attached conditions. The grant is
recognised as a reduction to cost of sales with a corresponding recognition of receivable from government. The
following are the conditions precedent:

e The Company must be registered at Corporate Affairs Commission (CAC) and Nigerian Export Promotion
Council (NEPC).

e  The Company must have a minimum annual export turnover of N5 million and evidence of repatriation of
proceeds of exports.

e  The Company shall submit its baseline data which includes audited Financial Statement and information on
operational capacity to NEPC.

e The Company shall be a manufacturer, producer or merchant of products of Nigerian origin for the export
market (i.e. the products must be made in Nigeria).

e  Qualifying export transaction must have the proceeds fully repatriated within 180 days, calculated from the
date of export and as approved by the EEG Implementation Committee.
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2.24

2.25

2.25.1

2.25.2

2.25.3

Related parties

Related parties include the holding company and other group entities. Directors, their close family members and
any employee who is able to exert a significant influence on the operating policies of the Group are also considered
toberelated parties. Key management personnel are also regarded as related parties. Key management personnel
are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described above, the directors are required to
make judgements (other than those involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts
recognised and to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are presented separately
below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Export Expansion Grant Receivable and Negotiable Duty Credit Certificates

Export Expansion Grant Receivable and Negotiable Duty Credit Certificates represents benefits from Federal
Government of Nigeria in the form of rebates on locally manufactured goods exported by the Company. The
related balances as indicated in Notes 6 and 27 have been outstanding for more than one year. Notwithstanding,
no impairment charge is recognised. The group assesses the balances and concluded that no impairment charge is
required on the basis that they are sovereign debts.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below:

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated over their useful lives. The group estimates the useful lives of PPE
based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimation of the useful lives
of PPE are based on technical evaluations carried out by those staff with knowledge of the machines and
experience with similar assets. Estimates could change if expectations differ due to physical wear and tear and
technical or commercial obsolescence. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially
affected by changes in the estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts and
timing of expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. A reduction in
the estimated useful lives of the plant and machinery would increase expenses and decrease the value of non-
current assets.

Warranty provisions

Provision for products warranty is made at the time of revenue recognition and they are reviewed and adjusted
periodically to reflect actual and anticipated experience. The estimation of provision at each period end requires
involvement of staff with product knowledge and the estimate could change if there are changes in factors
considered during the formulation of the required provision.
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2.25.4 Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) of trade receivables

2.26

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit
insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the
matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every
reporting date, the historical cbserved default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLsis a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic
conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables and contract assets is disclosed in the financial statements.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position but are disclosed unless
the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Financial risk management

The Group and company's operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include the effects of changes in
foreign exchange rates, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rates.

The Group's treasury function reports to the Board at least annually with reference to the application of the Group
Treasury Policy. The policy addresses issues of liquidity, funding and investment as well as interest rate, currency
and commodity risks.

The Group's risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls and to monitor the risks and limits continually by means of reliable and up-to-date systems. The Group
modifies and enhances its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets and products. The
Audit & Risk Committee, under authority delegated by the Board, formulates the high-level Group risk
management policy, monitors risk and receives reports that allow it to review the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management policies.

The Company Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both

regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to both
Senior Management and the Audit Committee.
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3.1

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that financial loss arises from the failure of a customer or counterparty to meet its obligations under a contract. It arises
principally from trading activities with customers. The group has dedicated standards, policies and procedures to control and monitor all such
risks. Although the group is potentially exposed to credit loss in the event of non-performance by counterparties holding the group's cash and
cash equivalents, such credit risk is controlled through credit rating and equity price reviews of the counterparties and by limiting the total
amount of exposure to any one party. Equity price reviews of counterparties is done through the monitoring of the share price of the
counterparties on the floor of the stock exchange.

The credit risk of customers is assessed at subsidiary and group level, taking into account their financial positions, past experiences and other
factors. Individual customer credit limits are imposed based on these factors. Customers are initially brought on board on a cash basis for a
period of six months. At the expiration of the six months cash trading period, customers are free to apply for credit.

The group does not believe it is exposed to any material concentrations of credit risk.

All of the group's financial assets are carried at amortised cost. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value
of the financial assets in the statement of financial position.

The table below analyses the company’s and group’s financial assets into relevant maturity groupings as at the reporting date.

Company
31 May 2020

Neither

past due

nor Up to 80 91-180 Over 180
Financial assets: impaired days days days Total
In thousands of naira
Cash and bank (Note 12) 8,573,322 E - - 8,573,322
Trade receivables (Note 8) 1,430,415 538,102 21,492 - 1,990,009
Due from subsidiary (Note 28.2) 82,400 - - - 82,400
Due from related party companies (Note 28.2) 1,048,280 - - - 1,048,280
Loan receivables (Note 9) 2,049,000 - - i 2,049,000
Export expansion grants receivable (Note 27) - - - 1,598,115 1,598,115
Negotiable duty credit certificates (Note 27) - = - 271,913 271,913
Other receivables (Note 8) 704,104 - . - 704,104
Total 13,887,561 538,102 21,492 1,870,028 16,317,183
31 May 2019

Meither
past due
nor Up to 90 91-180 Over 180

Financial assets: impaired days days day. Total
In thousands of nairg
Cash and bank (Note 12) 1,987,131 - - - 1,987,131
Trade receivables (Note 8) 3,411,842 1,323,898 47,389 - 4,783,129
Due from subsidiary (Note 28.2) 1,584,419 - - - 1,584,419
Due from related party companies (Note 28.2) 524,993 - - - 524,993
Loan receivables (Note 9) 3,464,576 - - - 3,464,576
Export expansion grants receivable (Note 27} - - - 1,643,659 1,643,659
Negotiable duty credit certificates (Note 27) - - - 271,913 271,913
Other receivables (Note 8) 696,885 - - - 696,885

11,669,846 1,323,898 47,389 1,915,572 14,956,705
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Group
31 May 2020
MNeither
past due
nor Up to 90 91-180 Over 180
Financial assets: impaired days days days Total
In thousands of naira
Cash and bank (Note 12) 10,792,938 - - - 10,792,938
Trade receivables (Note 8) 3,008,057 2,507,244 23,275 - 5,538,576
Due from related party companies (Note 28.2) 1,048,280 - - - 1,048,280
Loan receivables (Note 9) 2,049,000 - - - 2,049,000
Export expansion grants receivable (Note 27) - - - 1,617,035 1,617,035
Negotiable duty credit certificates (Note 27) - - - 297,491 297,491
Other receivables (Note 8) 972,943 - - = 972,943
Total 17,871,218 2,507,244 23,275 1,914,256 22,316,263
31 May 2019
Meither
past due
nor Up to 80 91 - 180 Over 180

Financial assets: impaired days days days Total
In thousands of noira
Cash and bank (Mote 12) 2,518,847 = - & 2,518,847
Trade receivables (Note 8} 6,759,354 2,751,535 101,993 - 9,612,882
Due from subsidiary (Note 28.2) 2,105,669 - - - 2,105,669
Due from related party companies (note 28.2) - = . - 1,663,118
Loan receivables (Note 9) 1,883,900 - - - 1,883,900
Export expansion grants receivable (Note 27) - - - 1,663,118 1,663,118
Negotiable duty credit certificates (Note 27) - - 5 297,491 297,491
Other receivables (Note 8) 1,011,227 - - - 1,011,227
Total 14,278,997 2,751,535 101,993 1,960,609 19,093,134

Allowance for impairment as disclosed in Note 8.1 relates to specific provision for trade receivables that are doubtful of recovery.

Allowance for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of the receivables.

An analysis of the international long term credit ratings by Standard & Poor's of counterparties where cash and cash equivalents are held is as
follows:

Company

In thousands of naira 2020 2019
Credit rating

B 8,573,322 1,987,131

Group

In thousands of naira 2020 2019
Credit rating

B 10,792,938 2,518,847

B: The obligor currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitments on the obligation. Adverse business, financial, or economic
conditions will likely impair the obligor's capacity or willingness to meet its financial commitments on the obligation.
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3.2

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The group
maintains a strong liquidity position and manages the liquidity profile of its assets, liabilities and commitments so
that cash flows are appropriately balanced and all funding obligations are met when due.

There is a central treasury that coordinates cash flows management and funding activities. Cash surplus to
immediate requirements is placed in interest yielding short term deposit accounts in banks with good credit rating,

The group enjoys favorable 90 days of credit from its suppliers as against 30 days of credit it gives to its customers.
Thus, the group is always at an advantage position to meet its obligations because funding is quickly available from
credits extended to its customers than the timing it requires to settle its obligations.

Included in the group's trade and other payables as at the 31 May 2020 and 31 May 2019 are balances due to
related parties of N27.7 billion and N18.9 billion respectively while that of the company is N20.9 billion and N17.5
billion respectively.

The table below analyses the group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings as at the reporting date

Company
31 May 2020
In thousands of naira

Up to 90 Up to 180
Financial liabilities: days days Total
Trade and other payables - excluding sundry creditors (Note 18) 18,195,708 8,828,665 27,024,374
31 May 2019

Up to 90 Up to 180
Financial liabilities: days days Total
Trade and other payables - excluding sundry creditors (Note 18) 13,912,621 10,630,127 24,542,748
Group
31 May 2020
In thousands of naira

Up to 90 Up to 180
Financial liabilities: days days Total
Trade and other payables - excluding sundry creditors (Note 18) 29,361,384 6,095,405 35,956,789
31 May 2019

Upto91- Over 180

Financial liabilities: 180 days days Total
Trade and other payables - excluding sundry creditors (Note 18} 22,460,044 5,298,365 27,758,409
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3.3

3.4

3.5

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risks as it holds variable interest
bearing financial liabilities as at year end.

The following table details the sensitivity to a 1% (2019: 1%) increase or decrease in interest rates.

In thousands of naira Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Interest earned from related parties (Note 29) 304,971 294,997 338,419 393,512
Interest paid to related parties (Note 29) (454,234) (304,027) (276,515} (175,868)
Net Interest earned from/(paid to) related parties  (149,263) (9,030) 61,904 217,644
Average interest rate for the year (%) 11.8 13.0 11.8 13.0
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Impact of 1% increase in average interest rate (13,846) 6,262 4,388 20,554
Impact of 1% decrease in average interest rate 13,846 (6,262) (4,388) (20,554)
Impact of 2% increase in average interest rate (27,693) 12,524 8,776 41,107
Impact of 2% decrease in average interest rate 27,693 (12,524) (8,776) {(41,107)
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that movements in market rates, including foreign exchange rates, interest rates, equity and
commodity prices will affect the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument. The management of

market risk is undertaken using risk limits approved by the operating unit finance directors under delegated
authority,

Foreign exchange risk

The Group's activities expose it to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Subsidiary
undertakings must ensure that all transactional exposures arising from commitments in a currency other than their
functional currency are identified and monitored. The group manages foreign exchange risk through foreign
exchange forward contracts. The group is primarily exposed to the US dollar. A 15% increase/decrease in foreign
exchange rate at the reporting dates would have increased/decreased profit or loss and total equity by the
following amounts. This analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate variances that the group considered
to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. The analysis assumes that all other variables remain
constant.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the reporting date are as follows:

Group Liabilities Company Liabilities
2020 2019 2020 2019
Foreign Currency ($'000) (49,815) (39,720) (20,436) (18,568)
Assets Assets
2020 2019 2020 2019
Foreign Currency ($'000) 3,609 2,063 3,359 2,063
Closing foreign exchange rates [Naira/Dollar) 389.00 360.40 385.00 360.40
Average foreign exchange rates (Naira/Dollar) 367.86 356.82 367.86 356.82
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3.5

3.6

3.7

Foreign exchange risk {cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis is due to possible changes in foreign currency balances on intercompany payables, cash and bank and
trade receivables

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
In thousands of naira
US dollar - 15% increase (2,696,074) (2,035,705) (996,389) (892,232)
US dollar - 15% increase (2,696,074) (2,035,705) {996,389) (892,232)

The foreign exchange risk is mainly from related parties payable and receivable balances with foreign related parties.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
All the group's financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost and due to the short term nature of these
financial instruments, the fair value reasonably approximates the carrying value in the statement of financial position.

Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concern while

maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall
strategy remains unchanged from 2019.

The capital structure of the Group consists of Net debt (bank overdrafts, intercompany loans, less cash and bank

balances) and the equity of the Group (comprising issued capital, reserves, retained earnings and non-controlling
interests).

The Group's risk management committee reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis, As part of this review, the
committee considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.

Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at the vear-end is as follows:

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019
In thousands of naira
Debt " 1,173,870 = 248,870
Cash and bank (see Note 12) (10,792,938} (2,518,847) (8,573,322) (1,987,131)
Net debt (10,792,938) (1,344,977) (8,573,322) (1,738,261)
Equity 31,786,672 42,660,739 23,896,811 33,816,582
Net debt to equity ratio -34% -3% -36% -5%

The group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets.

Capital requirements are generally imposed by the majority shareholder, PZ Cussons (Holdings) Limited, U.K.
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4a Property, plant and equipment
Group - 2020
Furniture,
Leasehold Fittings and Capital Work
Land and Plant and It Motor in Progress
In thausands of naira Buildings machineries equipment vehicles {wir) Total
Cost
At 1lJune, 2019 19,542,829 24,841,301 3,408,183 569,010 1,257,060 49,618,383
Additions - = - - 1,539,635 1,539,635
Reclassification 152,075 439,818 152,814 - (744,707) *
Dispasal {4,450} {4,450)
At 31 May, 2020 19,694,204 25,281,119 3,560,997 564,560 2,051,988 51,153,568
Depreciation
At 1June, 2019 3,840,414 15,341,101 2,526,997 569,010 - 22,277,522
Depreciation for the year 361,058 1,920,609 408,587 - - 2,690,254
Disposals - - - {4,450} - {4,450
At 31 May, 2020 4,201,472 17,261,710 2,935,584 564,560 - 24,963,326
Cost
At 1 June, 2018 19,493,538 22,773,437 3,218,554 569,010 2,109,459 48,163,998
Additions = 1,454,385 1,454,385
Reclassification 49,291 2,067,864 189,629 (2,306,784) =
At 31 May, 2019 19,542,829 24,841,301 3,408,183 569,010 1,257,060 49,618,383
Depreciation
At 1June, 2018 3,479,648 13,556,901 2,130,280 566,840 - 19,733,669
Depreciation for the year 360,766 1,784,200 396,717 2,170 - 2,543,853
At 31 may, 2019 3,840,414 15,341,101 2,526,997 569,010 - 22,277,522
Carrying amounts
At 31 May 2020 15,493,432 8,019,409 625,413 - 2,051,988 26,190,242
At 31 May 2019 15,702,415 9,500,200 881,186 - 1,257,060 27,340,861

Depreciation expense of N1.9 billion (2019: N1.81billion) has been charged in 'cost of sales’, N.45 billion (2019: NO.44billion) in selling and
distribution expenses' and N.38 billion (2019: NGNO.37 billion) in administrative expenses.

Construction work in progress as at 31 May 2020 mainly comprise of new factory lines and plant enhancements.
There was no capitalised borrowing cost during the years ended 31 May 2020 and 31 May 2019.

There were no assets pledged as security for borrowing during the year {2019: nil).

43



PZ CUSSONS NIGERIA PLC
Annual report and consolidated financial statements

31 May 2020
Notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements
4a  Property, plant and equipment
Company - 2020
{a) The movement on these accounts was as follows:
Furniture, Capital
Leasehold Fittings Work in
Land and Plant and and IT Motor Progress
In thousands of naira Buildings machineries equipment vehicles (WIP) Total
Cost
At 1June, 2015 15,025,340 23,181,966 3,150,283 485,561 1,156,339 46,999,489
Additions - - - = 1,266,251 1,266,251
Reclassification - 447,461 144,038 - (591,499) -
Disposal £ - = {4,450) g {4,450)
At 31 May, 2020 19,025,340 23,629,427 3,294,321 481,111 1,831,091 48,261,290
Depreciation
At 1 June, 2019 3,796,490 14,548,629 2,309,848 485,561 - 21,140,528
Depreciation for the year 350,687 1,753,890 391,772 - - 2,496,349
Disposals 5 3 - {4,450) 5 {4,450)
At 31 May, 2020 4,147,177 16,302,519 2,701,620 481,111 - 23,632,427
Cost
At 1 June, 2018 18,977,043 21,162,768 2,995,347 485,561 2,053,343 45,674,068
Additions - E - - 1,325,421 1,325,421
Reclassification 48,291 2,019,198 154,536 - (2,222,425) =
At 31 May, 2019 15,025,340 23,181,966 3,150,283 485,561 1,156,339 46,999,489
Depreciation
At1June, 2018 3,446,093 12,935,530 1,924,689 485,561 - 18,791,873
Depreciation for the year 350,397 1,613,099 385,159 - s 2,348,655
At 31 May, 2019 3,796,490 14,548,629 2,309,848 485,561 - 21,140,528
Carrying amounts
At 31 May 2020 14,878,163 7,326,908 592,701 . 1,831,091 24,628,863
At 31 May 2019 15,228,850 8,633,337 840,435 - 1,156,339 25,858,961

Depreciation expense of N1.74 billion (2019: N1.64 billion) has been charged in "cost of sales', N0.39 billion (2019: NO.37 billion} in 'selling and
distribution expenses’ and NO.36 billion {2019: NO.34 billion} in 'administrative expenses.

Construction work in progress as at 31 May 2020 mainly comprise of new factory lines and plant enhancements.
There was no capitalised borrowing cost during the years ended 31 May 2020 and 31 May 2019.

There were no assets pledged as security for borrowing during the period (2019: nil).
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Leases

The application of IFRS 16 to leases previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17 resulted in the recognition of right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities,

The Group has chosen to use the table below to set out the adjustments recognised at the date of initial application of IFRS 16.

Movement in right-of-use assets: Group Company
In thousands of naira 2020 2020
Cost

At 1 June 2019 322,485 254,680
Additions 142,919 102,500
At 31 May 2020 465,404 357,580

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 June 2019

Charge for the year 190,362 147,856
At 31 May 2020 190,362 147,856
Carrying Amount

At 31 May 2020 275,042 209,724
Lease Liability

At 1 June 2019 322,485 254,680
Additions 142,919 102,900
Lease Payment (190,362) (147,856)
At 31 May 2020 275,042 209,724

The Company leases motor vehicles. The leases of motor vehicle is for mainly 3 years with an option to renew.

Group Company
2020 2020
Non-Current 119,847 91,887
Current 155,195 117,837
275,042 209,724
Intangible Assets Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2018
In thousands of naira
Cost
At 1June 1,059,618 1,059,618 1,059,618 1,059,618
Additions G - = -
At 31 May 1,059,618 1,059,618 1,059,618 1,059,618
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 June (211,924) (105,962) (211,924) (105,962)
Charge for the year {105,962} (105,962} (105,962} {(105,962)
At 31 May (317,886) (211,924) (317,886) {211,924)
Carrying amount
At 31 May 741,732 847,694 741,732 847,694

All intangible assets are non-current. All intangible assets of the Group have finite useful life and are amortised over 10 years

in line with its accounting policy. The intangible assets represent cost of Enterprise Resource programme package (SAP)
deployed.
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5 Investrent in Subsidiary

In thousands of naira

At 31 May
Country of
incorporation
Investment and place of Nature of
amount business business
Household
electrical
appliances Nigeria
HPZ Limited 504,406 Nigeria manufacturer
HPZ Limited

In thousands of nairg

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Revenue

Expenses

(Loss)/Profit for the year

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests

(Loss)/Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company

Other comprehensive income attributable to the non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company

Total comprehensive income attributable to the non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year
Net cash inflow/outflow from operating activities

Net cash inflow/outflow from investing activities
Net cash inflow/outflow from financing activities

Net cash outflow

The amounts disclosed above do not reflect the elimination of intragroup transactions.

Other long-term receivables

Non-current other receivable of N1.91biilion {2019: N1.99 billion) relates to: prepayments over
Negotiable Duty Credit Certificates (now callad "export credit certificates”

past. These were reclassified from currents assets to other long-term receivables.

31 May 2020

Company
2020 2019
504,406 504,406
Proportion
Nature of of shares
business held by NCI
% %
74.99 25.01
2020 2019
22,250,146 22,365,124
3,030,001 2,533,553
(14,228,921) (12,455,165)
- (76,320)
(8,472,169) (9,277,159)
(2,825,560) (3,094,033}
28,053,338 27,135,549
(29,389,681) (26,558,053)
{1,336,343) 577,496
(1,002,124) 433,064
(334,219) 144,432
(1,336,343) 577,496
(1,002,124) 433,064
(334,219) 144,432
(1,336,343) 577,496
4,720,633 (977,752)
(1,887,508} (227,479)
(1,145,224) (128,159)
1,687,901 {1,333,390)

12 months, exports rebates receivable and
) due from the Government in respect of exports sales made in the

Group Company
In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Prepayments over 1 year - 29,861 29,861
Export Rebates receivables & Export credit certificates (ECC) (Note 27) 1,914,526 1,560,609 1,870,028 1,915,572
Total 1,914,526 1,990,470 1,870,028 1,945,433
Inventories

Group Company
In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Raw materials 8,629,003 9,085,772 5,656,281 9,027,018
Finished goods and goods for resale 7,811,192 11,361,457 5,745,076 6,097,145
Engineering spares and other stocks 2,785,674 2,918,618 2,536,303 2,766,878
Goods in transit 7,032,830 5,233,209 1,717,087 1,277,395
Total 26,258,699 28,599,056 15,654,747 19,168,436

During the year ended 31 May 2020, N53 7m {2019: N383m) was charged to
Also recognised as expense in the financial statements are engineering spa
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8 Trade and other receivables
Receivables due within one year:
Group Company

In thousands of Naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Trade receivables 6,908,872 10,845,936 3,099,446 5,654,404
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables
(Note 8.1) (1,370,296) (1,233,054) (1,109,437) (871,275)
Net trade receivables 5,538,576 9,612,882 1,990,009 4,783,129
Due from subsidiary (Note 28.2) - - 82,440 1,584,419
Due from related party companies (Note 28.2) 1,048,280 2,105,669 1,048,280 524,993
WHT credit note receivable 456,772 552,108 262,340 439,074
Other receivables 972,943 1,011,227 704,104 696,885
Total 8,016,571 13,281,886 4,087,173 8,028,500

Trade receivables
The average credit period on sales of goods is 30 days. No interest is charged on outstanding trade receivables.

The Group always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The
expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default
experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor's current financial position, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The Group has recognised a loss allowance of 100% against all receivables over 180 days past due, because
historical experience has indicated that these receivables are generally not recoverable. There has been no change
in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current reporting year. The Group writes
off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptey proceedings, or when the trade receivables are over two years past due, except where there is
adequate security. None of the trade receivables that have been written off are subject to enforcement activities.
Trade receivables are considered to be past due when they exceed the credit period granted.

There are no other customers which represent more than 10% of the total balance of trade receivables of the
Group after impairment. The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables based on the Group's
provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the provision for loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group's different customer base.

The Group did not recognise impairment on amount due from related party, because there are no conditions
existing that reflects a future default in recovering amount due.
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8.1 Allowance for impairment of trade recejvables
Trade receivables - days past due
31 May 2020 Not Due 1-30 31-60 61-90 91-180 > 180 Total
In thousands of Naira
Expected credit loss rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 50% 100%
Estimated total gross carrying
amount at default 3,008,057 943,256 1,169,472 388,516 46,549 1,347,022 6,908,872
Lifetime ECL - . < - (23,274) {1,347,022) (1,370,296)
3,008,057 949,256 1,169,472 388,516 23,275 - 5,538,576
Trade receivables - days past due
31 May 2019 Not Due 1-30 31-60 61-90 91-180 > 180 Total
Expected credit loss rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 50% 100%
Estimated total gross carrying
amount at default 6,759,354 1,880,417 488,934 382,184 203,986 1,131,061 10,845,936
Lifetime ECL - - - {101,593) (1,131,061) (1,233,054)
6,759,354 1,880,417 488,934 382,184 101,993 - 9,612,882
Company
Trade receivables - days past due
31 May 2020 Not Due 1-30 31-60 61-90 91-180 >180 Total
Expected credit loss rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 50% 100%
Estimated total Bross carrying
amount at default 1,430,415 248,395 215,832 69,875 42,984 1,087,945 3,099,446
Lifetime ECL 5 i . (21,492) (1,087,945} {1,109,437)
1,430,415 248,395 219,832 69,875 21,492 - 1,990,002
Trade receivables - days past due
31 May 2019 Not Due 1-30 31-60 61-90 91-180 >180 Total
Expected credit loss rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 50% 100%
Estimated total gross carrying
amount at default 3,411,842 1,100,050 145,217 78,631 94,778 823,886 5,654,404
Lifetime ECL - . 2 . (47,389} (823,886) {871,275)
3,411,842 1,100,050 145,217 78,631 47,389 - 4,783,129
The Company's exposure to credit and market risks related to trade and other receivables are disclosed in Note 3.1.
Set out below is the mavement in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables:
Group Company
In thousands of Nairg
Balance as at 1 June 2019 (1,233,054) {871,275)
Provision for expected credit losses (137,242) {113,907)
Changes in credit risk parameters - (124,255)
Balance at 31 May 2020 (1,370,296) (1,109,437)
82  Trade receivables impaired (ageing)
Group Company
In thousands of Nairg 2020 2019 2020 2019
Trade receivables impaired {ageing)
The ageing of impaired trade receivables is as follows:
Current to 180 days 101,993 101,993 47,389 47,389
Over 180 days 1,268,303 1,131,061 1,062,048 823,886
Total 1,370,296 1,233,054 1,109,437 871,275

The impairment loss as at 31 May 2020 relates to several Customers that are not expected to be able to pay their outstanding balances, mainly
due to economic circumstances. The Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due are still callectible, based on historical
havio

payment be

vior and extensive analysis of the underlying customers' credit ratings. The impairment loss is included in administrative expenses,

Based on historical default rates, the Company believes that, apart from the above, no additional impairment allowance is necessary in respect

of trade receivables past due. As at the date of the approval of the financial statements.

All trade receivablos are denominated in Nigerian Naira.

The credit risk of distributors i assessed at subsidiary and group level, taking into account their financial positions, past experiences and other

factors. Individual distributor credit limits are imposed based on these factors

Distributors are initially brought on board on a cash basis for a period of six months. At the expiration of the six months cash trading period,

distributors are free to apply for credit.
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g Loan receivahles
In thousands of Naira Group Company
Cash advance (Note 28.2) 2020 2019 2020 2019
2,049,000 1,883,900 2,048,000 3,464,576
2,043,000 1,883,900 2,049,000 3,464,576
Loan receivable relates to cash advance made to related party
10 Other assets
In thousands of Nairg Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Prepayments 69,129 123,663 69,129 123,663
Advances to Distributors 95,436 - :
Advances to suppliers 845,747 1,146,340 780,357 796,340
Total 1,010,312 1,270,003 849,486 920,003

The advances to Distributors represent amount given to HPZ distributors for the development of showrooms
across the country to promote our home electrical appliances brands. Also, advances have been made to suppliers

to secure supply lines in the course of business.

11 Deposit for imports

In thousands of Naira Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019
Deliverable forwards 668,100 - 266,045 -
Deposit for letters of credit 533,975 2,204,023 52,324 1,590,536
Total 1,202,075 2,204,023 318,369 1,590,536

Deliverable forwards and deposit for letters of credit represents committed cash no longer available for another
purpose other than that for which it has been designated for. They represent naira deposits for foreign currencies
purchased for funding of letters of credit and forwards; all related to settlement of invoices emanating from

importation of raw materials, spare parts and machinery.

12 Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
In thousands of Naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Cash in hand 35,586 36,214 35,586 36,214
Cash at bank 10,341,568 2,482,633 8,121,952 1,950,917
Short term deposits 415,784 - 415,784 -
Total 10,792,938 2,518,847 8,573,322 1,987,131

Short term deposits relates to fixed interest bearing deposits of the group in various banks.
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i3 Share capital
2020 2019
Number in Amount Number in Amount
thousands N'000 thousands N'000
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of 50k each 4,000,000 2,000,000 4,000,000 2,000,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of 50k each 3,970,477 1,985,238 3,970,477 1,985,238
14 Deferred Income
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Advance from customers 54,442 = = =
Rent in advance 27,432 - 27,432 -

81,874 ; 27,432 -

Deferred income payables relates to income received from customers for which goods are yet to be supplied and
rent received from third parties on PZ Cussons warehouses.

Deferred Income Group Company
In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Non- Current 61,047 - 6,605 &
Current 20,827 - 20,827 :
81,874 27,432
15 Taxation
Group Company
In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Income tax expense: 384,035
Company income tax in respect of
current year 351,191 178,671 201,185 178,671
Education tax in respect of current
year 32,844 14,322 25,488 14,322
Reversal of over-provision of prior
year tax = (199,377) 3 (199,377)
Effect on initial application of IFRIC 23 -
current year (Note 16.2) 14,241 - 14,241 s
Total current tax 398,276 (6,384) 240,914 {6,384)
Deferred tax:
Current year charge to income
statement (1,375,146) 835,445 (898,493) 508,151
(Over)/Under provision in prior year 18,081 (42,465) 18,560 47,269
Effect on initial application of IFRIC 23 -
Current year (Note 16.2) 213,613 - 213,613 e
Total deferred tax (Note 16) (1,143,452) 792,980 (666,320) 555,420
Income tax expense (745,176) 786,596 (425,406) 549,036
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i5

15a

Taxation (cont’d)

Effective tax reconciliation

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic tax
rate of the parent as follows:

Group Company
In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Profit before tax (7,984,735) 1,942,447 (6,392,401) 1,127,391
Income tax using the domestic corporation tax rate
of 30% (2019: 30%) (2,395,421) 582,734 (1,917,720) 338,217
Tax effects of:
Non-deductible expenses 1,020,275 431,381 1,019,227 348,605
Tertiary education tax 32,844 14,322 25,488 14,322
Minimum tax 351,191 201,185
Prior year tax adjustments recognised in current
year 18,081 (241,841) 18,560 (152,108)
Effect on initial application of IFRIC 23 - current year
(Note 16.2) 227,854 - 227,854 -
Total income tax expense in income statement (745,176) 786,596 {425,406) 549,036

The current tax charge has been computed at the applicable rate of 30% (31 May 2019: 30%) plus education levy
of 2% (31 May 2019: 2%) on the profit for the vear after adjusting for certain items of expenditure and income
which are not deductible or chargeable for tax purposes. Non-deductible expenses include items such as legal fees

The movement in the current income taxation payable is as follows:

Group Company

In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
At 1 June 192,993 457,818 192,993 457,818
Effect on initial application of IFRIC 23 - prior year

(Note 16.2) 219,833 - 219,833 ]
Effect on initial application of IFRIC 23 - current year

(Note 16.2) 14,241 ; 14,241 2
Tax charge for the year 384,035 (6,384) 226,673 (6,384)
WHT utilised during the year (178,671) (101,999) (178,671) (101,999)
ECC utilised during year (11,814) - (11,814) -
Tax paid during the year (441) (156,442) (441) (156,442)
At 31 May 620,176 192,993 462,814 192,993

At the statement of financial position date, the group and the company have no unused tax losses available for
offset against future profits.
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i6 Deferred taxation
Group Company
In thousands of naira 2020 2013 2020 2019
The analysis of deferred tax liabilities is as follows:
Deferred tax liability to be recovered after more than 12 months 5,368,688 3,214,813 6,852,605 4,221,430
The movement in deferred tax liability is as follows:
As at 1 June 3,214,813 2,421,833 4,221,430 3,666,010
Chargedy{credited) to income statement (Note 15) (1,357,233) 792,980 (879,933) 555,420
Effect on initial application of IFRIC 23 - prior year [Note 16.2) 3,297,495 + 3,297,495 5
Effect on initial application of IFRIC 23 - current year (Note 16.2) 213,613 - 213,613 £
As at 31 May 5,368,688 3,214,813 6,852,605 4,221,430
The mavement in deferred tax liability is as follows:
Group Company
Property, Property,
plant and plant and
In thousands of noira equipment Provisions Total equipment Provisions Total
At 1 June 2018 (445,633) 2,867,466 2,421,833 2,561,206 1,104,804 3,666,010
(Credited)/Charged To Income
Statemnent (Note 15} 792,980 = 792,980 555,420 - 555,420
At 31 May 2019 347,347 2,867,466 3,214,813 3,116,626 1,104,804 4,221,430
{Credited]/charged to income
statement (Note 15) (879,933) {477,300) {1,357,233) (879,933) - (879,933}
Effect on initial application of IFRIC 23
- prior year (Note 16.2) - 3,297,495 3,297,495 - 3,297,495 3,297,495
Effect on initial application of IFRIC 23 -
current year (Note 16.2) - 213,613 213,613 - 213,613 213,613
At 31 May 2020 (532,586) 5,901,274 5,368,688 2,236,693 4,615,912 6,852,605
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:
Group
In thousands of naira 2020 2019
Deferred tax liabilities 6,852,605 4,221,430
Deferred tax assets (1,483,917) (1,006,617)
Net deferred tax liabilities 5,368,688 3,214,813
16.2 Effect on initial application of IFRIC 23
The company has applied IFRIC 23 (Uncertainty over income tax treatment) retrospectively on adoption, and has chosen to recognize the effect of initially
applying IFRIC 23 as an adjustiment to the opening balance of the retained earnings at the date of the initial application [i.e. 01 June 2019} without restating its
comparative figures.
The Uncertain tax position arose on accounting for transactions undertaken with a related party. The Group continues to believe that it has made adeguate
provision for the liabilities likely to arise from periods which are open and not vet agreed by tax authorities. The ultimate liability for such matters may vary
from the amounts provided and is dependent upon the outcome of agreements with relevant tax authorities, In assessing these income tax uncertainties,
management is required to make Judgements in the determination of the unit of account, and the evaluation of the circumstances, facts and other relevant
information in respect of the tax position taken together with estimates of amounts that may be required to be paid in ultimate settlement with the tax
authorities. With the adoption of IFRIC 23, the Group has therefore made prior year and current year adjustments in its accounts with respect to uncertain tax
positions. The impact on transition as well as the current year impact is summarized below:
On Transition Year Ended At Year End
1-Jun-19 31-May-20 31-May-20
In thousonds of nairg
Income tax payable 219,833 14,241 234,074
Deferred tax payable 3,297,495 213,613 3,511,108
Retained earnings 3,517,328 227,854 3,745,182
17 Warranty provisions
Group Company
In thousands of nairg 2020 2019 2020 2019
At 1 June 259,348 187,896 E =
Charged to the income statement 344,848 183,028 - =
Utilised in the year (259,348) {111,576) - #
At 31 May 344,848 259,348 5 =
The ageing of the warranty provision is as follows:
Within 12 months 99,430 183,028 =
Greater than 12 months 245,418 76,320 >
Total 344,843 259,348 - :

The warranty provision represents management’s best estimate of the Group's liability under 12-month warranties granted on electrical products, based on
past experience and industry averages for defective praducts,

The group generally offers 1- 3 year warranties for its electrical products and components. Directors estimates the related provision for future warranty claims
based on histarical warranty claim information, as well as recent trends. Factars that could impact the estimated claim infarmation include the success of the
Eroup’s product and quality initiatives, as well as spare parts and labour costs,
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18 Trade and other payables
Group Company

In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Trade payables 1,977,658 3,546,519 1,740,423 2,640,268
Unclaimed Dividend (Note 18.1) 1,860,703 1,966,545 1,860,703 1,966,545
Accruals 4,096,190 3,176,166 2,398,200 2,343,155
Amount owed to su bsidiary - - 4,452,649 6,186,173
Amounts owed to related parties 27,883,726 18,913,525 16,455,286 11,272,353
Gratuity accruals 138,512 155,654 117,112 134,254
Sundry Creditors 1,243,767 1,585,019 1,013,091 1,293,053
Total 37,200,556 29,343,428 28,037,464 25,835,801
Trade and other payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average
credit period taken for trade purchases is 90 days. No interest is charged by the Group's suppliers on all its
outstanding balances. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
paid within the pre-agreed credit terms. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk related to trade and other
payables is disclosed in Note 3.2 The Directors consider the carrying amount of trade and other payables to
approximate their fair value,
Included in the amounts reported as accruals relates to customer rebates of about N907m (2019:N548m); Duty
and clearing costs amount to N1,418m (2019: NS42m).
Transactions which relates to amount owed to related parties are disclosed in Note 28.

18.1 Unclaimed Dividend

18.1a The following dividends were declared by the Group during the year:

Group Company

In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Declared in 2020, 10 kobo (2019: 15
kobo) per qualifying ordinary share 397,048 595,572 397,048 595,572
This represents the dividend proposed for the preceding year but declared in the current year.
After the end of the reporting period, a dividend of N397.05 million representing 10 kobo per qualifying ordinary
share (2019: 15 kobo) was proposed by the directors (2019: N595.57 million}. The dividends have not been
provided for and there are no income tax consequences until the dividend is declared.

18.1b  Movement in Unclaimed Dividend

Group Company

In thousands of nairg 2020 2019 2020 2019
Balance at 1 June 1,966,545 2,120,565 1,966,545 2,120,565
Dividend declared with respect to prior year 595,572 595,572 595,572 595,572
Payments during the year to First Registrars (595,572) (595,572) (595,572) (595,572)
Unpaid dividend received (see (i) below) 54,282 61,205 54,282 61,205
Refund of overdrawn dividend payments (see {iii)

below) : (131,805) - (131,805)
Statute barred dividend transferred to retained

earnings (see (i) below) (160,124) (83,420) (160,124) (83,420)
Balance at 31 May 1,860,703 1,966,545 1,860,703 1,966,545
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181

19

20a

Trade and other payahles {cont’d)

Unclaimed Dividend {cont’d)

The balance as at year end is included in trade and other payables (Note 18)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Unclaimed dividends received and transferred to retained earnings (statute barred dividends) represent
dividends which have remained unclaimed for over twelve (12) years and are therefore no longer recoverable
oractionable by the shareholders in accordance with section 385 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap.
C20, Laws of the Federal Republic of Nigeria, 2004

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) circular published in 2015, all Capital Market
Registrars are to return unclaimed dividends which have been in their custody for fifteen (15) months and

(2019: N61.2million).
This refers to dividend payments made by First Registrars on behalf of p7 Cussons Nigeria Plc now refunded.

Loan Payables

Group Company
In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Cash advance - 1,173,870 - 248,870
= 1,173,870 = 248,870
Expense by nature
Group Company
In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work
in progress 49,463,744 49,666,107 26,593,016 27,549,975
Personnel expenses (Note 24.4) 7,648,317 7,797,499 5,894,044 6,122,806
Fuel and gas 1,537,659 1,622,102 1,510,978 1,584,690
Depreciation (Note 4a) 2,690,254 2,543,853 2,496,349 2,348,655
Depreciation - Right-of-use (Note 4b) 190,362 - 147,856 E
Amortization cha rge - Intangible assets { Note 4c) 105,962 105,962 105,962 105,962
Auditors remuneration 123,238 50,945 92,769 37,987
Directors emoluments (Note 24.1) 217,961 235,903 217,961 235,903
Rent and rates 102,010 201,848 91,593 212,648
Insurance 356,390 423,763 346,665 416,704
Freight/carriage cost 2,513,657 3,255,843 1,360,855 2,148,741
Security 315,967 338,734 314,399 336,578
PZ Foundation donation 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
Global shared services support 2,197,681 - 1,482,625 -
Vehicle repairs and maintenance 685,292 183,814 561,601 147,645
Technical Know, R&D sy pport, Trade mark &
Management fees (Note 26) 2,851,936 3,035,091 2,851,936 3,035,091
Advertising and market promotions 1,559,012 1,514,636 875,232 871,701
Allowance for doubtfu| receivables (Note 8.1) 137,242 106,210 113,907 98,974
Vehicle leasing - 626,571 - 505,699
General and other expenses 1,314,624 304,575 356,668 363,053
74,061,308 72,063,456 45,464,416 46,172,812
Cost of sales 58,370,711 57,235,233 34,404,445 34,997,013
Selling and distribution expenses 10,213,698 10,695,229 6,398,454 7,406,105
Administrative expenses 5,476,899 4,132,994 4,661,517 3,769,694
74,061,308 72,063,456 45,464,416 46,172,812
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20b  Exchange loss
Group Company
In thousands of nairg 2020 2019 2020 2019
Foreign exchange loss 945,860 444,277 248,873 381,673
21a  Other income
Group Company
In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Scrap sales and rental income 177,635 122,742 318,261 263,313
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 1,500 - 1,500 =
179,135 122,742 319,761 263,313
21b Revenue
The Group derives its revenue from contracts with customers for the transfer of goods at a point in time in the following
major product lines. This is consistent with the revenue information that is disclosed for each reportable segment under
IFRS 8 Operating Segments (see Note 22).
The Group analyses its net revenue by the following categories:
Group Company
In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Home and Personal Care Products 38,939,223 47,200,919 38,939,223 47,200,919
Durable Electrical appliances 28,053,338 27,135,549 = -
Total 66,992,561 74,336,468 38,939,223 47,200,919
22 Operating segments

The Chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Executive Management which comprises the five Executive
Directors.

For reporting purposes, in accordance with IFRS 8 'Operating Segments', the Board aggregates operating segments with

similar characteristics and conditions into reporting segments, which form the basis of the reporting in the Annual
Report.

The Executive Management considers the business from products perspective, with branded consumer goods and
durable electrical appliances being the reporting segments. The Executive Management assesses the performance based
on operating profit before any exceptional items.

The principal categories of customers are wholesalers. The Group's reportable segments under IFRS 8 are therefore as
follows:

Segment Description

Home and Personal Care Products This includes the production and sale of Morning Fresh, Zip, Canoe,
Premier, Excel, Joy, Stella, Venus, Imperial Leather, Cussons Baby, Original
Source, Carex, Robb etc.

Durable Electrical appliances This includes the production and sale of Haier Thermocool
Refrigerators, Freezers, Televisions, Generators, Air conditioners,
Washing Machines etc,
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The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by reportable segment in 2020:

Home and
Personal Durable
Care electrical
As at May 2020 Products appliances Eliminations Total
In thousands of naira
Revenue
Total gross segment revenue 38,939,223 28,053,338 - 66,952,561
Intersegment revenue i 5 = =]
Total Revenue 38,939,223 28,053,338 - 66,992,561
Segment operating profit (6,525,193) (543,554) - (7,068,747)
Depreciation (Note 4a) (2,496,349) (193,905) - (2,690,254)
Interest income (Note 29) 338,419 (33,448) (63,378) 304,971
Interest cost (Note 29) (276,515) (177,719) (63,378) (454,234)
Profit before taxation (6,392,401) (1,592,334) - (7,984,735)
Taxation (Note 16) 425,406 319,770 % 745,176
Profit after taxation {5,966,995) (1,272,564) - (7,239,559)
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by reportable segment in 2019:
Home and
Personal Durable
Care electrical

As at May 2013 Products appliances Eliminations Total
In thousands of naira
Revenue
Total gross segment revenue 47,200,919 27,135,549 - 74,336,468
Intersegment revenue . - = 5
Total Revenue 47,200,919 27,135,549 - 74,336,468
Segment operating profit 1,028,107 1,244,905 - 2,273,012
Depreciation (Note 4a) (2,348,655) (195,198) - (2,543,853)
Interest income (Note 29) 393,512 71,561 (170,076) 294,997
Interest cost (Note 29) (175,868) (298,235) 170,076 (304,027)
Profit before taxation 1,127,391 815,056 - 1,942,447
Taxation (Note 16) (549,036) (237,560) - (786,596)
Profit after taxation 578,355 577,496 - 1,155,851

customers. The result of jts revenue from external customers in Nigeria is N65 billion (2019:N73.6 billion) and the
total of revenue from external customers from other countries is N2 billion (2019: NO.8 billion) (Note 22.5). There

WEre no intersegment sales in the current year (2019: N
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22,2 Segment assets
Home and
Personal Durable
Care electrical
As at May 2020 Products appliances Eliminations Total
In thousands of naira
Property plant and equipment [Note 4a) 24,628,863 1,561,379 4 26,190,242
Intangible assets (Note 4c) 741,732 - = 741,732
Other long-term receivables 1,870,028 44,498 2 1,914,526
Financial assets (Note 3.1) 14,270,421 3,986,980 - 18,257,401
Inventory (Note 7) 15,654,747 10,603,952 - 26,258,699
Total segment assets 57,165,791 16,196,809 - 73,362,600
Unallocated assets 2,321,058 2,767,479 - 5,088,537
Consolidated total assets 59,486,849 18,964,288 - 78,451,137
Home and
Personal Durable
Care electrical
As at May 2019 Products appliances Eliminations Total
In thousands of naira
Property plant and equipment (Mote 4a) 25,858,961 1,481,500 - 27,340,861
Intangible assets (Note 4c) 847,694 - - 847,694
Financial assets (Note 3.1) 14,956,705 4,136,429 - 19,093,134
Inventory (Note 7) 19,168,436 9,430,620 - 28,599,056
Total segment assets 60,831,796 15,048,949 - 75,880,745
Unallocated assets 3,483,880 572,115 - 4,055,995
Consolidated total assets 64,315,676 15,621,064 E 79,936,740
The total segment assets located in Nigeria is N73.3 billion (2019: N75.9 billion), and the total of such segment assets
located in other countries is Nil (2019: Nil).
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between segments the Group's Executive
Management monitors the tangible, intangible and financial assets attributable to each segment. All assets are allocated
to reportable segments with the exception of investments in subsidiaries, other financial assets (except for trade and
other receivables) (see Note 8) and tax assets. Assets used jointly by reportable segments are allocated on the basis of
the revenues earned by individual reportable segments.
22.3 Other segment information

Depreciation and Additions to non-current
amortisation assets Company
In thousands of nairg 2020 2019 2020 2019
Home and Personal Care Products 2,602,311 2,454,617 1,266,251 1,325,421
Durable Electrical Appliances 193,905 195,198 273,384 128,964
2,796,216 2,649,815 1,539,635 1,454,385

The depreciation and amortisation as well as the additions to non-current assets reported above, were recognised in
respect of property, plant and equipment only.
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22.4

22,5

22.6

23

Revenues from major products and services
The Group's revenues from its major products and services are disclosed in Note 21b.

Geographical information
The Group's revenue from external customers and information about its segment assets (non-current assets

excluding financial instruments, deferred tax assets and other financial assets) by geographical location are
detailed below:

GROUP
Revenue from external
customers Non-current assets
In thousands of nairg 2020 2019 2020 2019
Domestic {within Nigeria) 64,968,565 73,576,973 29,121,542 30,179,025
Export (outside Nigeria) 2,023,996 759,495 - =
Total revenue from contract with
customers 66,992,561 74,336,468 29,121,542 30,179,025
Company
Revenue from external
customers MNon-current assets
In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Domestic (within Nigeria) 36,915,227 46,441,424 27,954,752 29,156,494
Export (outside Nigeria) 2,023,996 759,495 = E
Total revenue from contract with
customers 38,939,223 47,200,919 27,954,752 29,156,494

In presenting information on the basis of geography, segment revenue is based on the geographical location of the
Customers and segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets,

The Company facilitate export sales for a related company - Nutricima Ltd which is also domiciled in Nigeria.
Proceeds of such export activities are repatriated back to the country in line government policy guidelines.

Information about major customers

No single external customer either within or outside Nigeria contributed up to 10% of the revenue for the year.
Therefore, information on major customers is not presented.

(Loss)/Earnings per share
(Loss)/Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the

parent company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the reporting
period.

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019
(Loss)/Profit attributable to equity holders
of parent company (N'000) (6,921,291) 1,011,420 (5,966,995) 578,355
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue ('000) 3,970,477 3,970,477 3,970,477 3,970,477
(Loss)/basic earnings per share
(Naira/share) (1.74) 0.25 (1.50) 0.15

Diluted EPS is the same as (loss)/basic earnings per share as there are no potential dilutive ordinary shares or
transactions.

58



24
24.1

24,2

2421

24.3

31 May 2020
Notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements
Directors and employees emoluments
Group Company
In thousands of nairg 2020 2019 2020 2019
Chairman and director's emoluments:
Chairman 9,550 9,050 9,550 9,050
Directors 208,411 226,853 208,411 226,853
Total 217,961 235,903 217,961 235,903
As fees (As per Non-Executive Directors) 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000
Other emoluments (As per Non-Executive Directors) 28,550 27,050 28,550 27,050
Emoluments As per Executive Directors 182,411 201,853 182,411 201,853
Total 217,961 235,903 217,961 235,903
Included in emoluments to Executive Directors is pension paid to them during the year,
Number of directors excluding the chairman, whose emoluments fell within the following ranges were:
Executive Directors
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Number Number Number Number
N10,000,000 - N20,000,000 2 2 2 2
N20,000,001 - N30,000,000 1 1 1 1
N30,000,001 - N40,000,000 1 - 1 -
N80,000,001 - N90,0000,000 - 1 - 1
N90,000,001 - N100,000,001 1 ik 1 1
N100,000,001 - N125,000,000 £ = z 2
Directors with salaries and allowances as
emoluments 5 5 5 5
24.2.2 Non-Executive Directors
N1,000,000 - N5,000,000 5 i i i
N5,000,001 - NI0,000,000 5 5 5 5
Directors with fees and emoluments 5 5 5 5
Directors with no emoluments = 5 =
Total 5 5 5 5
Highest paid director received
Group Company
In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Highest paid director received 94,366 96,910 94,366 96,910

PZ CUSSONS NIGERIA PLC
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24.4 Personnel expenses

(a) Personnel expenses for the year comprise of the following:
Group Company

In thousands of najra 2020 2019 2020 2019
Salaries, wages and other employee
expenses 6,784,445 6,917,670 5,215,559 5,423,486
Pension costs - defined contribution
plan 555,895 552,215 425,650 426,072
Pension costs - gratuity scheme 307,977 327,614 252,835 273,248
Total 7,648,317 7,797,499 5,894,044 6,122,806

(b)

(€

Other employee expenses include incentives, medical and other employee benefits.

Number of employees of the Group and Company as at 31 May, whose duties were wholly or mainly
discharged in Nigeria, received annual remuneration (excluding pension contributions and certain
benefits) in the following ranges:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Number Number Number Number
N300,001 - N400,000 2 31 2 26
N400,001 - N500,000 2 39 2 4
N500,001 - N600,000 - 26 - 4
N600,001 - N700,000 - 58 - 3
N700,001 - N800,000 - 108 - i
N800,001 - N900,000 - 273 - 3
NS00,001 - N1,000,000 - 255 - 4
N1,000,001 - N1,100,000 i 145 = -
N1,100,001 - N1,200,000 - 73 - 1
N1,200,001 - N1,300,000 - 49 # 1
N1,300,001 - N1,400,000 1 22 = 1
N1,400,001 - N1,500,000 6 11 - 4
N1,500,001 and above 1,291 302 929 957
1,302 1,392 933 1,009

The number of full-time persons employed per function as at 31 May was as follows:

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019
Number Mumber Number Number
Production 792 1,016 595 734
Sales and distribution 405 237 248 147
Administration 105 139 90 128
Total 1,302 1,392 933 1,009
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25

26

Contingencies

Pending litigation and claims

The Group is engaged in lawsuits that have arisen in the normal course of business. The contingent liabilities in
respect of these pending litigations amounted to N 285.3million as at 31 May 2020 (2019: N166.19 million). In the
opinion of the directors, and based on independent legal advice, the Company is not expected to suffer any
material loss arising from these claims. Thus no provision has been made in these financial statements.

Also, the Group is engaged in a lawsuit with the federal government that have arisen from alleged ownership of
landed properties situated in Ikoyi, Lagos state. The properties in this case is valued at N4.1 billion. In the opinion
of the directors, and based on independent legal advice, the Company has title/certificates of occupancy to the
affected land, which provides prima facie evidence of ownership, however there is no precedence to estimate the
outcome of the matter.

Financial commitments
In the normal course of business, the Group uses letters of credit to import materials. The total value of open
letters of credit as at 31 May was N16.25 billion (2019: N13.65 billion).

Capital commitments

Below represents Capital commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment not provided for in
the financial statements:

Group Company
In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Authorised and contracted 1,325,815 1,663,118 1,167,596 1,643,659
Authorised but not contracted 235,278 297,491 149,610 271,913
Total 1,561,093 1,960,603 1,317,206 1,915,572

Technical service fee

The technical agreements, basis and amounts are given below. The amount recognised in these financial
statements is inclusive of VAT which is payable to the government. All agreements were made with the approval
of the National Office for Technology Acquisition and promotion (NOTAP). The last agreement expired in May 31,
2019. The company have already initiated process for the new 3 year agreement covering June 1, 2019 - May 31,
2022. Also, the company is engaging NOTAP to increase the current ceiling on NOTAP certificate number CR0O06415
by N2.4bn to enable the company to settle outstanding dues on technical Know-how fees relating 2018 and 2019.

NOTAP Approved Items Bases Rates 2020 2019
Technical Knowhow Net invoice value(NIV) of Group sales 3% 2,212,922 2,284,129
Technical service(R & D) Net invoice value(NIV) of Company sales 1% 426,009 488,154
Trade mark Net invoice value(NIV) of Companysales 0.5% 213,005 232,455
Management Fee Profit before tax (PBT) 4% - 30,353
Sub total 2,851,936 3,035,091
IT Recharge 2,197,681 4
Total 5,049,617 3,035,091

* NIV - Net invoice sales (Gross sales less trade discount)
* PBT - Profit before tax
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Export Expansion Grant scheme (EEG)

The Export Expansion Grant ('EEG' or 'the Scheme') is one of the export incentives introduced by the Federal
Government of Nigeria through the Export (Incentives and Miscellaneous Provisions) Act No. 18 of 1986 as
amended by the Export(Incentives and Miscellaneous Provisions) Act No. 65 of 1992, Cap E19, Laws of the
Federation of Nigeria (LFN). It is a post-shipment incentive designed to improve the competitiveness of Nigerian
products and commodities and expand the country's volume and value of non-oil exports.

The "Export Expansion Grant scheme (EEG)" is a very vital incentive of the Federal Government of Nigeria required
for the stimulation of export oriented activities that will lead to significant growth of the non-oil export sector.
Having met the eligibility criteria and registered under the scheme by the Nigerian Export Promotion Council
(NEPC), the Group is entitled to a rebate on export sales in as much as the Group can demonstrate that all the
conditions precedent have been met.

Export rebate receivable is recognised at the rate of 15% on the related export proceeds. The weighted eligibility
criteria has 4 bands: 15%, 10%, 7.5% and 5%. Approval of the rebate is subject to meeting threshold of the following

eligibility criteria: local value added, local content, employment (Nigerians), priority sector, export growth and
capital investment.

The Grant is recognised as a credit to cost of sales and as a receivable from the Government (Note 6).

The related receivable balances with respect to the EEG scheme are:

Group Company
In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Export Expansion Grant Receivable (Note 6) 1,617,034 1,663,118 1,598,115 1,643,659
Negotiable duty credit certificates (NDDC) /
Export credit certificates 297,492 297,492 271,913 271,913
Total 1,914,526 1,960,609 1,870,028 1,915,572
In thousands of naira Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
At 1 June 1,663,118 1,663,118 1,643,659 1,643,659
Recent rebates recognised (2016 - 2019) 1,712,056 - 1,712,056 -
Old rebates impaired (2007 - 2012) (1,746,325) - (1,745,786) -
Rebates (2017) converted to ECC (11,814) - {11,814) -
At 31 May 1,617,035 1,663,118 1,598,115 1,643,659

Negotiable Duty Credit Certificate (NDCC): The NDCC now called Export Credit Certificate (ECC) in line with the
revised guidelines for Export Expansion Grant (EEG) scheme can be used to settle all Federal government taxes
such as Company Income Tax, VAT, WHT, etc. and the following:

a) purchase of Federal Government Bonds,

b) settlement of credit facilities by Bank of industry (BOI), Nigerian Export-Import Bank (NEXIM) and Central Bank
of Nigeria (CBN) intervention facilities,

c) settlement of Asset Management Corporation of Nigeria (AMCON) liabilities
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27 Export Expansion Grant scheme (EEG) (cont’d)
Below is the analysis of NDDC unutilized for the year:
In thousands of naira Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
At 1 June 297,491 297,491 271,913 271,913
ECC received from NEPC 11,814 - 11,814 -
ECC utilised for settlement of Govt. related liabilities (11,814) - (11,814)
At 31 May 297,491 297,491 271,913 271,913
With respect to the EEG receivable, below is the ageing analysis:
> <
EEG<1 year LyraizEeg s EEG> 2years Total
2years
Group-31 May 2020 1,617,035 1,617,035
Group-31 May 2019 1,663,118 1,663,118
Company-31 May 2020 1,598,115 1,598,115
Company-31 May 2019 1,643,659 1,643,659
A significant component of the NDCC and EEG receivable have been outstanding for more than 1 year, therefore
impairment charge have been made because they are regarded as sovereign debts. However, the Government
have not communicated or indicated unwillingness to honour the ohligations. The outstanding balances have been
classified as non-current assets in the consolidated and separate financial statements.
in March 2017, NEPC issued a circular requesting exporters to submit EEG baseline data and then in December
2017, retrieved all the NDCC in hand. With the revised Export Expansion Grant (EEG) scheme, these NDCC and
export incentives would be settled via the issuance of promissory notes with tenor of between 5 - 7 years to
beneficiaries. In view of these government policy measures, the directors believe that government has shown
interest in revitalising the EEG scheme thus, a further boost to the recoverability of both the EEG and unutilised
NDCC.
The unutilised NDCCis an instrument with no specific expiry date hence, the recoverability of the instrument is not
in doubt.
28 Related party transactions
28.1 Group and company

The group and company are controlled by PZ Cussons (Holdings) Limited, incorporated in the UK, which owns
73.27% (2019: 73.27%) of the group and company's shares. The remaining 26.73% (2019: 26.73%) of the shares
are widely held. The group's parent is PZ Cussons (Holdings) Limited (incorporated in the UK) and its global ultimate
parent is PZ Cussons Plc.

Allintercompany trading balances are settled in cash. There was no provision for doubtful related party receivables
at 31 May 2020 (31 May 2019: Nil) and no charges to the income statement in respect of doubtful related party
receivables for the years then ended.

The company controls HPZ Limited in which it has controlling interest. This is detailed in Note 5.

The nature of relationship between related parties within the group are set out below:
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28.2

Related party transactions {cont’d)

Mame

- PZ Cussons (Holdings) Limited

- HPZ Limited

- PZ Cussons International Limited

- Seven Scent Limited

- PZ Cussons Singapore Private Limited
- PZ Cussons Indonesia

- PZ Cussons {Thailand) Limited

- PZ Cussons India Private Limited

- Minerva SA Limited, Greece

- PZ Cussons Ghana Limited

- PZ Cussons East Africa Limited

- Nutricima Limited

- Harefield Industrial Nigeria Limited
- PZ Wilmar Limited

- PZ Wilmar Food Limited

- PZ Coolworld Limited

Transactions with related parties

Purchase of goods and services

Nature of relationship

Parent company
Subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary

Group Company

In thousands of naira 2020 201% 2020 2019
Purchases of goods from joint ventures and subsidiaries of PZ Cussons (Holdings) Limited (parent company)**:

- Seven Scent Limited 2,680,726 3,679,661 2,680,726 3,679,661
- PZ Cussons Singapore Private Limited 34,522,971 32,545,694 6,206,297 11,312,817
- PZ Cussons Indonesia 2,524 3,003 2,524 3,003
- PZ Cussons Thailand - 18,145 - 18,145
- PZ Wilmar Limited 2,754,946 - 2,754,946 z

39,961,167 36,246,503 11,644,493 15,013,626
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Related party transactions {cont’d)

In thousands of naira

Purchases of goods from joint ventures and subsidiaries of PZ Cussons (Holdings) Limited (parent company)**:

- R& D Support - PZ Cussons International Limited

- Technical Knowhow fees - PZ Cussons International Limited

- Trade Mark - PZ Cussons International Limited
- Management fees - PZ Cussons International Limited

Recharge of services from PZ Cussons (Holdings) Limited (parent company)

- Global shared services support
Total

Sales of goods
- PZ Cussons Ghana Limited
- PZ Cussons East Africa Limited, Kenya

Recharge of service cost recovery- Distribution fees:
- HPZ Limited (Subsidiary)

- Harefield Industrial Nigeria Limited

- Nutricima Limited

- PZ Coolworld Limited

- PZ Wilmar Limited

- PZ Wilmar Food Limited

Sub -total A

Recharge of local shared services by PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc

- HPZ Limited (Subsidiary)

- Harefield Industrial Nigeria Limited
- Nutricima Limited

- PZ Coolworld Limited

- PZ Wilmar Limited

- PZ Wilmar Food Limited

Sub -total B

Net Recharge/Recovery of service cost (A-B)

Total
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Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
426,009 488,154 426,009 488,154
2,212,922 2,284,129 2,212,922 2,284,129
213,005 232,455 213,005 232,455
7 30,353 : 30,353
2,851,936 3,035,091 2,851,936 3,035,091
2,197,681 - 1,482,625 2
45,010,784 39,281,594 15,979,054 18,048,717
1,882,409 759,495 1,882,409 759,455
681 . 681 :
1,883,090 755,495 1,883,090 759,495
i < 1,993,115 2,184,784
522,236 630,205 522,236 630,205
357,342 793,366 357,342 793,366
17,781 55,838 17,781 55,838
350 7 390 e
12,692 13,036 12,692 13,036
910,441 1,492,445 2,903,556 3,677,229
= - 1,993,115 2,031,697
522,236 586,047 522,236 586,047
357,342 737,775 357,342 737,775
17,781 51,925 17,781 51,925
390 : 390 s
12,692 12,123 12,692 12,123
910,441 1,387,870 2,903,556 3,419,567
- 104,575 - 257,662
1,883,090 864,070 1,883,090 1,017,157
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Transactions with related parties (cont'd)

Key management personnel compensation
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Key management have been determined as directors (executive and non-executive) and the chairman. Details of
their compensation is as shown in Note 24. No loans were advanced to any key personnel management during the

year.

Year-end balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services

Group Company
In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Due to:
- Subsidiaries of PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc
- HPZ Limited - - 4,452,648 6,186,173
Sub Total - E 4,452,648 6,186,173
- Joint ventures and subsidiaries of PZ Cussons (Holdings) Limited UK **
- PZ Cussons International Limited 10,254,754 6,198,240 9,419,741 5,354,567
- Seven Scent Limited 2,345,957 1,542,978 2,345,957 1,542,978
- PZ Cussons Singapore Private Limited 12,381,805 8,380,908 1,788,379 1,583,409
- PZ Cussons (Holdings) Limited 1,872 7,890 1,872 7,890
- PZ Cussons (Thailand) Limited - 8,830 - 8,830
- Nutricima Limited 1,612,940 2,205,539 1,612,940 1,330,539
- Harefield Industrial Nigeria Limited 1,286,398 1,663,094 1,286,398 1,663,094
- PZ Wilmar Limited - 29,916 - 29,916
- PZ Coolworld Limited - 50,000 B =
Sub Total 27,883,726 20,087,395 16,455,287 11,521,223
Total 27,883,726 20,087,395 20,907,935 17,707,396
Due from:
- Subsidiaries of PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc
- HPZ Limited - - 82,440 1,584,419
Sub Total - - 82,440 1,584,419
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28.2 Transactions with related parties (cont'd)
- Ioint ventures and subsidiaries of PZ Cussons{Holdings) Limited UK **
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
- PZ Cussons International Limited - - 5 =
- PZ Cussons Ghana Limited 397,911 712,172 397,911 712,172
- PZ Cussons East Africa Limited, Kenya 16,830 31,444 16,830 31,444
- Harefield Industrial Nigeria Limited 125,035 189,900 125,035 189,900
- PZ Coolworld Limited 2,250,386 2,127,960 2,250,386 2,127,960
- Nutricima Limited 1,449 - 1,449 -
- PZ Wilmar Limited 305,669 928,093 305,669 928,093
Sub Total 3,097,280 3,989,569 3,097,280 3,989,569
Total 3,097,280 3,989,569 3,179,720 5,573,988

Balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services are revolving balances settled within 30 days after the
end of the month.

Group Company

In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Included within the closing balances above are short- term cash advances due from related parties:
- HPZ Limited - - - 1,580,676
- Nutricima Limited - - - B
- Harefield Industrial Nigeria Limited = 189,900 - 189,900
- PZ Coolworld Limited 2,049,000 1,694,000 2,049,000 1,694,000

2,048,000 1,883,900 2,049,000 3,464,576

Included within the closing balances above are short-term cash advances due to related parties:

- Nutricima Limited - - - 248,870
- Harefield Industrial Nigeria Limited - 1,123,870 - £
- PZ Coolworld Limited - 50,000 - -

1,173,870 - 248,870

** Joint ventures and subsidiaries of PZ Cussons (Holdings) Limited, UK
The entities categorized as Joint Ventures and subsidiaries of PZ Cussons (Holdings) Limited, UK are:

Local entities: Nutricima Limited, Harefield Industrial Nigeria Limited, PZ Coolworld Limited, PZ Wilmar Limited
and PZ Wilmar Food Limited.

Foreign entities: PZ Cussons International Limited, PZ Cussons Singapore Private Limited, PZ Cussons (Thailand)

Limited, PZ Cussons Ghana Limited, PZ Cussons East Africa Limited, PZ Cussons Mesa, PZ Cussons Indonesia , PZ
Cussons India Private Limited and Seven Scent Limited.
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29

30

Interest on advances from related entities and short-term borrowings from banks

During the year, the Group and company obtained and gave short-term advances at 13% p.a. from and to related
parties. The advances have been fully liquidated at 2020 and 2019 year end and they are not included in the closing
balances of the amount due to and the amount due from related parties by the company and the group These
advances were drawn down or disbursed in various amounts and did not run throughout the twelve months
duration of the financial years ended 31 May 2020 and 31 May 20189.

The Group and company incurred interest cost of N454 (2019: N304 million) and N276 (2019: N175.9 million) as
well as earned N301 million (2019: N295million) and N335 million (2019: 393.5 million) respectively on short-term
advances to related parties. All inter-company interest have been eliminated on consolidation. The un-eliminated
interest income and interest expense on consolidation relates to interest earned and interest paid on transactions
with other related parties (i.e. Nutricima Limited, Harefield Industrial Nigeria Limited, PZ Coolworld Limited, PZ
Wilmar Limited and PZ Wilmar Food Limited) outside of the PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc Group.

Group Company
In thousands of naira 2020 2019 2020 2019
Interest paid to related companies
Nutricima Limited (349,762) (197,954) (231,868) (126,315)
Harefield Industrial Nigeria Limited (46,464) - {13,657) -
PZ Coolworld Limited (1,695) - = =
{397,921) {197,954) {245,525) {126,315}
interest paid to banks (56,313) {106,073) {30,9%90) {49,553)
Total interest Cost {454,234) {304,027) {276,515) {175,868}
Interest earned from related companies
PZ Coolworld Limited 234,072 108,247 234,072 91,991
HPZ Limited - - 63,378 170,077
Harefield Industrial Nigeria Limited - 55,769 - 16,103
PZ Wilmar Limited - 115,341 - 115,341
234,072 279,357 297,450 393,512
Interest earned from banks 70,899 15,640 40,969 -
Tota Interest income 304,971 294,957 338,419 393,512
Net finance (cost)/Income (149,263} {9,030) 61,904 217,644

Dividends
Amounts recognised as dividends to ordinary shareholders in the year:

Final dividend for the year ended 31 May 2019 was paid during the year ended 31 May 2020 while final dividend
for the year ended 31 May 2018 was paid during the year ended 31 May 2019. This is consistent with the group's
policy of recognising dividend as a liability in the period it is approved by the shareholders.

As disclosed in Note 18, final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 May 2020 of 10kobo per share amounting
to a total dividend of N397,047,700 is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
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31

31.1

31.2

31.3

31.4

Dividends {cont’d)

of the company for the year then ended. Accordingly, there is no provision for the dividend in these financial
statements. This dividend is being funded from distributable reserves.

Events after reporting date

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak to be a pandemic
in recognition of the its rapid spread across the globe, with about 150 countries affected. Many governments,
including the Nigerian government, are taking increasingly stringent measures to contain the spread of the virus.
Currently, there is a significant increase in economic uncertainty which is evidenced by increase in exchange rates.

Consequently, for the Company's 31 May 2020 financial statements, there is no impact on the recognition and
measurement of assets and liabilities. Due to the uncertainties of the outcome of current events, the Company
cannot reasonably estimate the impact these events will have on the Company's financial position, result of
operations and cash flows in the future.

lkoyi Properties

Until 12 December 1991, Lagos State was the capital territory of Nigeria; and at that time certain lands was under
the control/ownership of a Federal Government of Nigeria. When country's capital was moved to Abuja, the land
in question reverted ostensibly to the control of Lagos state in line with the Land Use Act of 1978. The State
authority then transferred the lands to various private landowners. Three properties in Ikoyi belonging to PZ
Cussons Nigeria Plc falls within this portion of land.

However, in July 2020 subsequent to year end, the Federal government asserted that they never transferred
ownership of the land to the state authorities at that time when the capital moved to Abuja and accordingly laid
claim to continued ownership. Occupiers of the properties are alleged to be squatters in the originating summons
filed at the High Court by Nurudeen & Co. Nigeria Limited (who by an affidavit annexed to the summons claims
that they were appointed as Agent of the Federal Government of Nigeria by a letter of instruction from the office
of the Attorney General of the Federation dated 24 August 2017 filed an action). The properties of PZ Cussons
Nigeria Plc in the affected areas are valued at approximately at N4.1billion.

The Company has title/certificates of occupancy to the affected land, which provides prima facie evidence of
ownership, however there is no precedence to estimate the outcome of the matter.

Proposed sale of factory premises situated at lkorodu, Lagos State

PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc held an extraordinary general meeting on Thursday, 24 September 2020 in respect of
proposed sale of factory premises situated within plot 20A lkorodu Industrial Scheme, Ikorodu, Lagos to Friesland
Campina Wamco Nigeria Plc. The proposed sale was approved at the meeting. The portion of the land being sold
to Friesland Campina Wamco Nigeria PLC is approximately 67,733.235 square metres,

Except as disclosed above, there are no other significant events after the reporting period which could have a
material effect on the financial position of the Company as at 31 May 2020, and its financial performance for the
year then ended, that have not been adequately provided for or disclosed in these financial statements

Dividend declared with respect year ended 31 May 2020

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 May 2020 of 10 kobo per share amounting to a total dividend of
N397,047,700 was declared at the board meeting held on 28 September 2020. No provision for the dividend is
recognised in the financial statements for the year then ended because, dividend is recognised as a liability in the
period it is approved by shareholders.
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Five Year Financial Summary
Group

In thousands of naira
Statement of financial position:
Non-current assets

Current assets

Total asset

Equity attributable to equity
holders of parent
Non-controlling interest
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

In thousands of naira
Turnover

(Loss)/Profit before taxation
(Loss)/Profit after taxation
(attributable to owners of the
company

Per 50K Share
(Loss)/Earnings per share (Naira)

Net assets per share (Naira)

PZ CUSSONS NIGERIA PLC
Annual report and consolidated financial statements

31 May 2020
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
29,121,542 30,179,025 31,369,077 29,531,602 26,504,924
49,329,595 49,757,715 57,246,893 60,555,923 47,925,250
78,451,137 79,936,740 88,615,970 90,087,525 74,430,174
31,786,672 42,660,739 42,161,471 42,272,665 40,900,644
2,773,281 3,091,549 2,947,118 2,865,212 2,502,326
5,795,000 3,291,133 2,525,349 2,583,604 3,931,549
38,096,184 30,893,319 40,982,032 42,366,044 27,095,655
78,451,137 79,936,740 88,615,970 90,087,525 74,430,174
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
66,992,561 74,336,468 80,552,808 78,215,660 69,527,537
(7,984,735) 1,942,447 2,313,509 4,811,169 3,148,196
(6,921,291) 1,011,420 1,845,214 3324 712 1,863,013
(1.74) 0.25 0.46 0.84 0.47
8.01 10.74 10.62 10.65 10.30

(Loss)/Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

Net assets per share is based on net assets and the number of issued and fully paid ordinary shares at the end of each

financial year.

This report is not prepared under IFRS. Instead it has been prepared in compliance with the Companies and Allied Matters

Act of Nigeria.
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Five Year Financial Summary
Company

In thousands of naira
Statement of financial position:
Non-current assets

Current assets

Total asset

Equity attributable to equity holders of
parent

Non-controlling interest

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

In thousands of naira

Turnover

(Loss)/Profit before taxation
(Loss)/Profit after taxation (attributable
to owners of the company

Per 50K Share
(Loss)/Earnings per share (Naira)

Net assets per share (Naira)

PZ CUSSONS NIGERIA PLC
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31 May 2020

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
27,954,753 29,156,494 30,255,829 28,582,245 25,844,128
31,532,097 35,159,182 44,320,290 44,457,365 32,435,474
59,486,850 64,315,676 74,576,119 73,039,610 58,279,602
23,896,811 33,816,582 33,750,379 34,076,230 33,792,289
6,951,097 4,221,430 3,666,010 3,960,174 4,108,185
28,638,942 26,277,664 37,159,730 35,003,206 20,379,128
59,486,850 64,315,676 74,576,119 73,039,610 58,279,602
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
38,939,223 47,200,919 58,483,029 54,761,729 45,097,194
(6,392,401) 1,127,391 1,736,740 2,817,164 776,880
(5,966,995) 578,355 1,630,557 2,235,631 389,999
(1.50) 0.15 0.41 0.56 0.10

6.02 8.52 8.50 8.58 8.51

(Loss)/Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

Net assets per share is based on net assets and the number of issued and fully paid ordinary shares at the end of each

financial year.

This report is not prepared under IFRS. Instead it has been prepared in compliance with the Companies and Allied Matters

Act of Nigeria.
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